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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Casa grande Vallam Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Casa grande Vallam Private Limited ("the
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024 and the Statement ofProfit and
Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summzuy of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "the Standalone Financial Statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and accounting principles generally accepted in India,
ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company as at March 3l't 2024, its Loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ol the Ind AS Financiat Statements,
section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the'Code ofEthics'issued
by the Institute ofChartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor's repo( thereon.
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation ofthese Ind AS financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards

prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act read with rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules.20l5 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other inegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible lor assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and

using the going concem basis ofaccounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or elror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
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of intemal control.

' Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

r Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concem.

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial stalements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect ofany identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ('the order"), issued by the central
Govemment of India in terms of sub-section ( 1 1) of Section 143 of the Act (here in after refened to
as the "order") and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination ofthose books and the back of the books ofaccounts and other
books and papers of the Company maintained in electronic mode has been maintained on servers
physically located in India, on a daily basis. (Refer note 33 to standalone financial statements)

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

(d1 In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 201 5, as amended;

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March 31,2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

@) According to the Information and explanation given to us and on the basis ofour examination of
the record ofthe Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid /provided. Accordingly,
repo(ing under section 196(16) ofthe Act is not applicable and,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule

1l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its financial position -

refer note 28 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherrvise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. (Refer note 31 to standalone financial statements)
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(b) Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, (Refer note 31 to standalone financial
statements) and

(c ) Based on the audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations made by the Management under sub clause (a)

and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the ye and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable
for the year under consideration.

vi Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on April 01,2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same

has operated thoughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. (Refer note 33 to standalone financial statements)

For CNGSN and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 00491 5S/S200036

C N Gangadaran

Partner
Membership No: 011205
Place: Chennai

Date: 13.07.2024

UDIN: 240 I 1 205BKANEU3342
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Refened to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of Casa Grande Vallam Private Limited of even date)

a) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment:

(A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, clause
(iXa)(A) ofPara 3 ofthe order is not applicable.

(B) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, clause
(i)(a)(B) ofPara 3 ofthe order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by

us, we report that, the Company has no immovable properties ofland and building held

as Property, plant and equipment or Investment Property as at the balance sheet date.

Accordingly, clause (i)(c) ofPara 3 of the order is not applicable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, we report that, the Company has no immovable properties of land and building held

as Property, plant and equipment or Investment Property as at the balance sheet date.

Accordingly, clause (i)(c) ofPara 3 ofthe order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not revalued

its Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly,

clause clause (i(d)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not

applicable.

e) The company does not hold any Benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, clause

(i(e)) olPara 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

2. Inventories:

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure ofsuch verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on such verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis ofsecurity of current assets at
any point of time during the year. Accordingly, clause (ii)(b) of Para 3 of the order is not
applicable.

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has
made loans in the nature ofunsecured loans to companies and Limited Liability Partnership.

3
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sheet date with respect to loan to holding company, subsidiary companies and fellow
subsidiary companies is mentioned in the following table:

In Million)

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
company's interest.

c) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us in respect of loans and advances
in the nature olloans, the schedule repayment ofprincipal and interest has not been stipulated
as the repayments are on demand.

d) In the absence ol stipulated schedule of repayment ofprincipal and pal.rnent of interest, we
are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more than 90
days.

e) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, no loans or advance in the nature
of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans have been granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
Since the terms of anangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are
repayable on demand, we are unable to comment on the same.

Guarantee Security Loans
Advances in

nature of
loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided
during the year

- Subsidiaries
- Holding company
- Associates

- Fellow subsidiaries
- Others

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries
- Holding company
- Associates/Joint Ventures
- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others
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f) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the company has granted loans
or advances in the nature of loans during the year either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment are as follow:

Particulars Amount
(In Millions)

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment

21.79

Percentage to total loans granted t00%

Aggregate Amount granted to Promoters, Related parties
as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act,2013

21.79

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections
185 and section 186 ofthe Companies Act,20l3. Further as the Company is engaged in the business
ofproviding infrastructural facilities, the provision ofSection 186 [except for sub-sectionl] are not
applicable to the company.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder, and hence reporting under clause (v) ofthe Order is not applicable.

6. Maintenance ofcost records as specified by the Central Govemment under sub-section (1) ofSection
148 of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clause (vi) of
paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the records ofthe Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service tax,
income-ta,x and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no
undisputed statutory dues outstanding for more than six months.

b) According to the records ofthe company and information and explanations given to us, the
company has no disputes on statutory on 31'r March2024. Accordingly, clause (vii)(b) ofPara
3 ofthe order is not applicable.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books ofaccount that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (43 of l96l).

9
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has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings are
repayable on demand and terms and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans and
interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lendei.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not obtained any term loan during the year.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised' on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joint-ventures and accordingly,
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) olthe Order are not applicable.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joinlventures and accordingly,
paragraphs 3 (ix) (0 of the Order are not applicable

10.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way ofan initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

I l.

a) To the best ofour knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) No report under subsection ( l2) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in form
ADT-4 as prescribed under the rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4
with the central government, during the and up to the date of this report. Accordingly, clause
(xi(b)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

c) To lhe best ofour knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause (xi(c)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions ofclause(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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14.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an intemal audit system and
it is in commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The intemal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit was
considered.

15. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non - cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the Directors.
Accordingly, clause (xv) ofPara 3 ofCompanies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

16.

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause(xvi) (a) and (b)
olthe Order are not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the
Group as a CIC. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as dehned in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank oflndia. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) ofthe Order
is not applicable to the Company.

d) Based on the information and explanation provided by the Management ofthe Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however,
separately evaluated whether the information provided by the Management is accurate and
complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) ofthe Order is not applicable to
the Company.

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the
Company.

18. There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Note 30 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates ofrealisation olfinancial
assets and payment offinancial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination ofthe
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period
ofone year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an asswance as to the
future viability ofthe Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
ofthe audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period ofone year from the Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

20 The company is not mandatorily required to engage in CSR activities as per Section 135 ofCompanies
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Act, 2013 and hence reporting under this clause (xx) of Para 3 ofCompanies (Auditors Report) Order
2020 are not applicable.

21. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have investments in subsidiaries/ associates orjoint venture companies. Accordingly, clause (xxi) of
the Order is not applicable.

For CNGSN & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0491 55

C.N
Partner

Membership No: 11205

Place: Chennai

Date: 13.07.2024

UDIN: 2401 1205BKANEU3342
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Annexure "8" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of Casa Grande Vallam Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Casa Grande Vallam Private
Limited ('lhe Company") as of March 31,2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financiat
statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ol adequate intemal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation
ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditorrs Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( l0) ofthe Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating elfectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial
Statements
A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal pulposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting princ iples.

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors ofthe company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements
Because ofthe inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility ofcollusion or improper management override
ofcontrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
ofany evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because ofchanges
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these IndAS financial statements were operating effectively as

at March 31,2024, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India

For CNGSN and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 00491 5S/S200036

CN
Partner
Membership No: 0l1205
Place: Chennai

Date:1310712024
UDIN: 2401 1 205BKANEU3342

CHENNAI
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Casr Grindt vallam Priralt Limited
Bakoce Sh(tl rs rt Nlerch -11.202.1

lAlld 'oa^ o? i't .Villio t rnliss olle^isi stdtc.l)

Parti(ular\ \oles \larch 3l :02.1

Non-currcn( rssets
O'.her assels

Defcncd rax asscts (neo

Partner
Membershii}

,"
Sri Prrtrp Reddy
Chint.lrprlli
Direator
DIN:10074244

5

6

1.68

30.66
32.1,1

Currenl rsrels

financirl rsse(s

Trade reccilables
Cash and cash cquivalcnts

Loans

Other financialassels
Other currcnt assds

Current tax asset (net)

69.t4
10.t7
2t.19
0.78

43.18
4.47

1

8

9
3

4
5

l0

12142

571.90

Total asse(s

Equity ind lisbilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other cquity
Totrl lquity
CurrcIt Lirbilities
Finrncirt lirbllities

Borrowings
Tradc payablcs

Dues to micro small and medium entcrprises

Dues to othcrs

Othcr fi nancial liabilitics
oiher cunent liabilities

For CNGSN & Associ.tes Ll,P
Chancrcd Accountants

Fi.m Registralion Number: 049155

606.2,{

ll
t2

rl

0.10
2.t1

l6
l6
l4
l5

1.87

165.63

?.00
68.62

60-1.97

Totrl lirbiliries

Totrl €qully rnd liabilities

TIe accompanying notcs form an integral patt of the financial slatements

606.24

For and on bchrlfofthc Borrd of Dircctors of
Crsr Gnnde \'.llrm Privrtc Limiled
CIN 5910

Dt

er : i 1205 I0218561

Place : Chennai

Datc:13.07.2024
Place : Chennai

Datc:1.1.07.2024
Place : Chennai

Date:13.0?.2024

!4

CHENNAI
600 041

?

LA

G
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CHENMI

2.21

360.85

601.97



Casa Crande Yrllim Prirale Limiled
Srrrcment of Prolil rnd Loss for lhe period endcd Mrrch -31. 202.t

t,4 Ilmtounts dk in tlilliolt:t. uDtuss othtn\s( stutud)

Parliculrrs
Forthe period rndcd

March 11.2024
lllcome
Rcvcfluc from conracb with custorncrs

O(hcr incoftc
Totd lncoma

t2.65l1

t8

l9

20

23

S.i Prrtrp Reddy
Chintdrprlu
Direclor

DIN: 10074244

Erpahaas

Cost ofraw mat€rials, components and stor6 consumcd

Consrucdon activity exp€nses

(lncrcasc)/ dccrcasc in $ock of flals, land stock and work-in-
progress and lradd goods

Employcc bcncfi ts .xpcnsc

Financc costs

D@reciadon and amonization cxpensc

Olher crpcnses

Totrl arpdrscs

Profir0oss) bcfor€ ter
(l) Cunent rax

(2) Deferred lax charge(credit)
Incomc tax cxpense

ProfiU(lors) for th€ yerr

Ermhlgs p.r shrr!

Basic, cooputed on lhe basis of pIofit for thc ycar (ln {)

Dilutcd, computcd on the basis of profit for lhc,tat (ln a)

For CNGSN & Associ.tes LLP
Chancrad Accountanls

Firm Rcgistr.tioo Number : 049155

C. N*.

Partller

Membdship Numbcr : I1205

For and on behrlfofthe Board ofDir*(ors of
C.sr Grznde vrllzm Privete Limited
CIN 165920

0.t I

564]I

22

22

s.?5

6.90

4.73
4.13
2.t'l

2t7

211

102 r8561

Placc : Chcnnai

Datc:13.0?.2024
Place : Chennai

Datc:13-07.2024
Place : Chennai

Date :13.07 2024

CHENNAI
600 04'

CHENNAIt

12.65



Casa CrInde Vrlhm Prlvite Linrited
Slat€m€nl ofChrng.s in Equih for lhc period ended March 31.2024
( a aDnw,t\ a,? it Mi iots. u less olp,\tise stoted)

a. Equiq share cepilel:

Equity shrres of ll0 crch issucd. subscrib€d and fully prid
As rt December 12,2023
Issue ofsfiare capital

As rt Mrrch 31. 2024

10.000 0.r0

b. Other equiq

Retrined earnings Total

As et DecembGr 12,2023
Profir / (loss) fn the period

Other comprehcnsiYe income
Toral comprd'ensivc incomc (loss)

As at Mrrch 31.2024

. Gengaderrn

2.t7

2-17

2,17

2-17

2.17 2.11

For CNGSN & Assoctrter LLP
Chanered Accountanls
Firm Registsation Number : (X9l55

For rnd on behalfofthe Borrd ofDir€ctors of
Crsr Grsnde Vrll.m Privrt€ Llmitcd
CIN 165920

A
a/"

Panner

IUembershipNumber : I 1205

Place : Chamai
Date:13-07.2024

Sri Prrtrp R€ddy Chinlilrprlli

Dire.tor
DIN: I 00742.14

kumlr

DINj 10218561

Place : Chmnai
Date:13.07.2024

Place : Chennai

Date il3 .01 .2024
u cc

C-HE,V|JA,
buo 041

10.000 0.10

CHENt.l/AI



Casa Grande Vrllam Priratc Limitcd
Statcmcnt of Cash Flows for the period ended lrarch 31, 202{
(All atnou ts arc i lllillio s, u less othenise

Prrticulars
t\larch 3l 2021

Operating activilies
Profir(k'ss) before tax

Chanercd Accounta s
Firm RegisFatjon Number : 049

6.90

As per our report of even date

For CNGSN & Associrtes LLP

(0.53)

0.58

(69.13)
(424.43)
(44.81\
167.50

5.30
68.63

(290.0s)

(19.80)

(21.79)
(0.2s)

l.l I

0.l0
360.85

362.06

For rnd on behdfofthe Bo.rd ofDirectors of
alhm Privste Limited tA

165920

10.17

10.17

marC. N. Grngedrren
Partner

Membership Number : I 1205

Casr
CIN :

S.i Prrtrp Reddy

Director

DIN:10074244

do

D

DIN 10218561

9
-1rn

o

Plac€ : Ch€nnai

Date t11.01.2024
Place : Chennai

Date :\3.01.2024
Place : Chennai

Date :13 .07 .2024

CHENI{AI
600 041

CHENNAI

Aljust pnts to reconcile prolit belorc .ax ,o net cosh Jlotes:

Working capitol t djt stn€nts:
(Increase)/decrease in tradc rcccivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(Incrase)/decrease in other current assets

Incrcasc/(decrease) in trade paldles
Increase/(decrease) in other fi nancial liability
Increase(decrease) in other current liability
Cash g€nerrted from operating rc(ivities
lncome lax (paidYretuDded

Net crsh flows from/(uscd in) oper.ting rctivities

Investing activities
I-oan given to related panies

Interest re€eived (financc incomc)
Net crsh flows frorv(used in) investirg rctivities

Pinancing rctiviti€s
Interest paid

Proc€eds from issue of share capital
Proc€edr(repaynent) from short ierm borrowings
Net cesh flows fror/(used in) finrncing rctivitie6
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Nel foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents al the b€ginning of the year

C.sh and crsh equivalents et yerr €nd

____________c?2q

__* -p1.0!L



Crs:r Grande Vallrm Pritrte Limited
Notes to financial strtemcnts for the pcriod ended -11 i\tarch 202'l

(-1 tt d tounts an! u ltltlliotts, uDle.ts othulrise stated)

l.Corporate informrtion
Casa Grande Vallam privare Linircd (!he Company') was incorporated on ll De€embcr, 2021 under the Provisions of the

CompanicsActapplicablcinlndia(..Acl.').ThercgistcrcdofliccislocalcdatNPLDcvi,Nolll'L.B,Road.Thiruvanmiyur,
Ch€flnai 600041 .

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real cslate constructions. development and other rclated activities in India.

The finarcial statcments were approved for issue in accordancc wi$ a resolution of the directors on I 3 .,uly 2024

2.Materirl accountlng Policies

This note provides a list ofrhe significant accounting policies adopted in lhe prepamlion ofthe financial slalements These policies

have becn consistmlly applied to all the pcriods presentcd' unless otherwise stalcd'

2.1 Brsis of prep.rrtlon
tn accordance with thc notification issucd by thc MCA, thc Company has adoplcd Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) spccificd

under section 133 ofthe Act, read with lhc compa.i6 (lndian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and presentation

requiremenls ofDivision lI ofschedule lll ro the companies Act,2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule III).

Tle standalone linancial statem€nts of the company arc Preparc{ and presented in accordance wilh Ind AS. The standalone

l'inancial srarern€nrs have beelr preparcd on the historical cos( basis, exc€pt for ccrtain fitrarcial iDstrumen6 which are mcasured at

fair values at the end of each reporting pcriod, as explained in thc accounting policics below. Historical cosl is generally based on

the fair valu€ of the consideration Siven in exchange for Soods and services

2.2 Summrry ofother significrnt .ccountilrg policlc,

An asset is treatcd as curralt when il is:

- Expected to be realized or inlended to be sold or consumcd in nomlal operatinS cycle

- Held primarily for the purpos€ oftrading
- Expected to be rcalized rl/ithiD twelva months after the rcpodng period, or

- 
-a'str or castr cquiratent unless restricted from being orihanged or used to setllc a liability for at lcast (wclve months after the

r€porting period

All other asscb arc classified as non_currmt.

A liability is current whet:
- It is €xpected to be s€ttlcd in normal opemting cycle

- lt is held primarily for the purposc of rading

- It is due to be scttl.d within twelve rnonths aft€t the rcporting poiod, or

- There is no unconditional right to defcr rhe s€nlement ofthe liability for at least twelve rmnths aflcr the reponing period

All other liabilitics alc classified as non_currcnt-

The opcrating cycle is the trme betwcen the acquisition of asscls for processing and their re3lisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The opo*in! cyclc of the Company's real estate operations varies fiom project to project depending on $e siz€ of the projec! qpe

of developmcnt, project complexitid and rclated approvals. Accordrngly, projcct related sss€ts and liabilities are classified into

curTmt and noD-currcni based oD thc operathg rycle of lhc projcct. All olhcr assels alld liabilities havc beco classified into currcdt

and noncurrent bas€d on a p€riod of rwclve months.

Deferred tar asscl, liabilities arc classified as non-current aasctd liabililiG.

b As

(r) Use of ettlmrtes

The pr€paration of finaflcial statem€nts in conformity wilh IDd AS requircs lhc nDnaSernent to rnake .iudgments, estimatas and

assumptions that afrcct thc reportd amounls of revetrues, cr{p.nses! .rss€ts aDd liabilities and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities,

at the end ofthc rcponing period. Although these estirnatcs are based oD tbe manaS€metrt's b€st knowledge of culrmt cvmts and

actions, uncenainty ubout ihese ussumptio.rs and estinates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the

carrying amounG ;f assets or liabilitics. The effect ofchsngc in an accouting estimate is rccognized prospectively'

(b) curfent versus nolr-currctrt chssillartiotr

Thc corDpany prese[ts assets and liabilities in lhe balancc shcet based on curreol,/ non-current classilicalion.

CHEN NAI



Casa Grande vallam Privltc Limitcd
Not€s to finrncial strlcmcnts for lhe period cnded 3l March 2024

(c) Property, plrnt rnd equipment
All prop€rty, plant and cquipment except freehold land are slated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cosl

compnses purchase pnce, impon dud6, non,refundable taxes, borrowing cosls if capiElization criteria are mel and directly

ato.ibutrble cost ofbringingthe asset to its working condition for the inlendeduse. Any tmde discounts and rebates are deducted in

arriving at the purchasc price.

Each pan of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost thal is significanl in relalion to lhe tolal cost of the ilem is

deprcciarcd separatcly. This applics mainly lo components for machincry. whcn significanl parts of plant and equipment arc

required to be r€placed at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, whm a

nrajor inspcction is performed, its cost is recognized itr thc carryiDg amount of the plant and equipment as a replacemenl if the

recognition crir€ria arc satGfied. All otho rcpair and rnaintcoance costs 6re recognizcd in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequenl cxpenditure related to an ilern ofproperty, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future

b€nefils fiom ils previously ass€ss€d standard of perfomunce. All other expmses on existinS propefty, plant and equipmenl,

including day-to-day repair and maint€flancc expenditurc and cost ofreplacing par6, arc charged to the statemmt ofprofit and loss

for thc period during which sucb exp€oses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attribubblc to acquisition of property, plant and cquipmen! which take substantial p€riod of time to 8et

ready for ils inleodcd use arc also included to the exlent thcy relate to thc period lill such assels are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and cquipment oulstanding at each balance shc.t date is classificd as

capital advances under other non-current assets

An itcm of prop€rty, plant and equipment and .ny significsnt part initially r€cognizcd is de-rEcognized upon disposal or when no

n t r. €coro-i" bencnL arc expccted from ils use or rliryosal. Any gair or loss arising on de-recoSnition of the asset (calculated as

the diffcrence b€fi,c€n lhe net disposal procceds and thc carying arnount ofthe assct) is included in lhe incomc stateirEn! whel the

Property. plant snd equipment is dc-recognized.

Expcnditure directly rclati[g to construction activity is capilaliscd. Indircct cxpcnditure incurred during consEuction period is

capitaliscd to the exterr to which the expendiore is indirrctly relatcd !o construction or is incidanlal thereto o$er indirect

cxpcnditurc (including borrowing costs) incuncd during thc consaucdon period which is not related to lhc construclion activity

nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Costs of assets not ready for use .t the balance sheet date arc dis.losed under capital wo'k- in- prog'ess'

(d) D€precirtion on property, phDt ard cquipm.Dt
Depreciation is calculatcd on written down valuc melhod using lhe following useful lives estimatcd by thc management' which arE

cqual to those prescribcd undcr Schedule I to the Cornpsnies Act, 2013, except ce(ain categori€s of assets whose useful life is

cstimated by the rnaMgament bas€d on planncd usage and technica.l cvaluation thcrcon:

lAll anounts orc ih Mi ions, unle'l,s other,-isa stated)

Useful life
Buildr-ngs 60

Ternpomry Structures l
Fi6-turc& Frttrngs l0
PEnt&Machincry-Civil l2- 15

rce Equipment 5

Vehicles 8-r0
-mpnters l
Seflars and network €quiprnent 6

Lcas€hold improvemcDls are atnonised ovcr the remahing p.riod of l.asc or their cstimated useful lif€ (10 ye3rs), vhichever is

shoncr.

The residual values, usefi, lives and methods of deprcciation of property, planl and equipment atrd investrnent propcrty are

revicwed at each Iinancial year end and adjustcd prosp.ctivcly, ifappropriate.

sASo.
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Casa Grrnde Vallam Prir.t€ Limited
Not6lo linrtrci.l slrlemenls for the period €nded 3l M"rch 202'l

{A a ants arc in Mi iols, unless othcNite stated)

(e) Ints,lgible assets

Intangible assets acquired sepamtely are measured on initial recognition al cost. Following inilial recognition, inlangible assels arc

carried al cost less accumulated arno(izalion and accumulaied impairment losses, ifany.

Intangiblc ass€rs comprising of cornputer software are amortized using [rillen down valuc method over ! pcriod of three years,

which is cstinuted by lhc managcmcnt lo bc thc uscful lifc ofthc assct.

The residual values. useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assels are reviewed at each financial year md and

adjusted prosp€ctively. if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from dc-recognition ofan intangblc assct are measured as the diffetncc bctween thc nct disposal procccds

ard the carying armunt of thc asset and arc recogniz€d in lhc slatem€nt of profi! and loss whm asset is derecognized.

(f) Invcstmetrt PropertY

The Propcrty (hat is hcld for long term renral yield or for capiEl appreciation ot bo!h, and thai is not occupied by the company is

classifi€d as an Inv6ment Propcrty. Investrncn! propenies are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to

initial rccognitioD, investrnelt properti6 arc stated at cost less accumulated dcpreciatioD and accwnulated impaitment toss, ifany.

The cost includes the cosl of replacing parts and bonowing costs for long-tcrm consEuclion Projects iflh€ rccognition criteria are

riet- wlcn significanl pans of the invest ncnl pmp€fty arc required to bc rcplaced at inlcrvals, the company depreciates thcm

s€paiatcly based oll their specific useful lives. All otber rcpair and maintenance cos6 are recognized in profit or loss as incurrcd.

Expenditurc directly reladng to coDstruction activity is capitalised. Lodirect cxpenditure incmed during construction period is

""iitulia"d,o 
the extcnt to which the exp€nditEe is indircctly related lo coNtruction or is incidental thcreto Other indtect

expcndirurc (including bonowing cosls) incurrcd during thc construction pcriod which is not rclatcd !o the construclion activity

nor is incidcntal thcrcto is charged to thc statcment ofprofit and loss

Invesmcnt propertics ara de-rrcognized wh€rl ihe entity Fansfcrs control of the safie to the buycr. Furlher the €dllity also

derccognisc; in;esbnent properties whcn lhey arc permanently withdrawn fiom us€ and no firture economic bcnefit is expeclcd

from thr-cir disposal. The diffcrcnce betwc$ fic net disposal proceeds and thc carrying amount of the asset is rccognizcd in profit or

loss in the period ofde-recogIrioon.

Rcclassificalion from /to investment property Transfers to (or from) invcstrncnl property are nEde only whm thcre is a changc in

use. Transfers bctwccn invcstmmt propcrty, o*ns-occlpicd propsrty and invcntories do not change the carryin8 amounl of the

property transferrcd and they do no! change the cost ofthat pmperty for measuranent or disclosure purpos6'

(g) Imprtrm€nt

A- FlDrtrclil rlscts

Tbe Collpany asscsses at cach dalo ofbalaocc shcct wheiher a financial assct ot a Conpa[y of finarcial asscts is irnpaired. tnd AS

lO9 rcquircs expcctcrt crcdit losses to be mcasured through a loss allowancc. The Company recognizcs lifetime cxpected losscs for

all contract asse6 and / or all tr6de rcc.ivables lhat do not constitute a financing trdnsacdon- For all other financial ass€ts, cxpcrted

cr€dit lo6sas arE rneasurEd at an amunl cqual to lhe l2-rnonth cxpccted crcdit loss€s or at an arnount cqual to thc lifc timc cxpectcd

crEdit loss6 if $c crEdit risk on thc financial assa has incrEascd sigDificantly since initial rccognition'

B. Non-llnttrcill tss.t!
Thc Company asscsses at each ftporting datc rrhether thsrc is an indication that an asset may be inpaircd lf any indication cxists,

or rrhm annusl impairmcnt tcsting for an assct is requircd, thc Company cstimates thc aslar's recovcrdblc amount. An assat's

recovcrabl. arburt is lhc higher of an ssset's or cash-gcncrating unil's (CGU) net sclling price and its value in use. Thc

rocovcrable amount is determined for an individual ass€q unless thc sss.t does not Sdrarate cash inflows thar are largely

indepeodent of tbose liom oth€r assets or Conpanys of assets. Wherc thc carD/in8 amouot of ao asset or CGU excecds ils

rccovcmblc smount, thc assct is considcred impaircd ard is writtcn down to i(s recovcrable amount. In assessinS value in usr. lhe

estimatad future cssh flows arc discountcd to &cir pr6cnl value using a pre-lax discount rate that rcflccts current markei

atsscssrEnts of thc timc valuc of money and thc risks sp€cific to thc asrd. In determining net selling pricc, recctl market

trarEactions arE tak.n into account, ifavaileblc. Ifno such Eansactions ca.n bc idcntificd, an appropriale valuation model is used.

krpairmcnt losses arc rc.ognized in thc statcrn€nt of prolit and loss. Aflcf impaimen! dcprcciation is providcd on the rcvisci

carrying armunt ofthc assct over its rcnBinins useful life.

* CHEN&C]
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C:rsa Grande Vallam Pritatc Limitcd
Notes to financisl sta(cDrcnls for (he pcriod cndcd 3l Mrrch 202'l
(Alt a n nts arc in Mi ions. unlers othol't'isc statcd)

(h) Le.ses

The Company assesscs at contract inception whether a conract is. or conlains, a lease. That is, ifthe conlract conveys the righl (o

control the use ofan idendfied ass€l for a period of lime in exchange for consideration.

Where the Compuy is lessee

A conxact is, or contains, a lease ifthe conEact involvcs _

i. The use ofan idcntified asset,

ii. The rigbt to oblab substa ially all thc economic bmefiB frortr use of tbc idenlified asset, and

iii. Ihe riSht to diecl lhe usc ofthe idcDlified assel.

Thc Company applics a single recognition and rneasurcm(nt approach for all lcascs. cxcc?t for short-tcm lcases and lcascs of low-

value ass.ts. Thc Company recognis€s leasc liabilitics lo rlakc lcase paymcn6 and riSht-of-use assets rcprcsentinS the riShl to usa

rhe underlying ass€rs.

A. Right-of-usc .rsett
The Company recognisG righ!-of-use asse6 at the commcnccment date of the lcas. (i.c., the da(e the undedying ass€t is avlilable

for use). Right-of-Bc ass.6 arc mcasured at cost, lcss aDy acotnulatcd dcprEciation and impairrneot loss€s, aod adjust€d for any

rem€asur.ficnt of tease liabilitics. The cost of righl-of-use ass€ls includes thc ahoun( of lcasc liabilitics recoglis€d, initial dircct

cosls incufiEd, arrd laasc payrneots madc at or beforc the comhcnccmmt date l6s any lcasc inceitives reccivcd. Right-of-use as!€ls

arE deprcciatod on a slraight-linc basis ovcr the shortar of thc leas€ tcrm and thc astimatcd useful livcs ofthc assels.

Ifown.f,ship of lhe lcascd assct tslnifcrs to thc Compaly st thc crd ofthc lcas. tcrm or lhc cosl rcflccG thc .xcrcisc ofa Purchas.

option, deprcciation is c{lculaled using thc Gtiriatcd uscful lifc ofthc asscl

The right-of-usc ass€ts arc also subjcc( to impainncot.

B. l,€rs. ll.bilide.
At ih€ comnErcenxnt &le of$e lea.6e, thc Cornpany recoSriscs lcasc Iiabilities rncasuttd 8l lie prcscnt value of lease payrncnts to

be madc ov€' tbc le3se term- Th. lealc palrnaflB includc fixcd paymelts (including in substancc fixcd payments) less any lease

incentivcs rccci!"ablc, wriablc l€ase paymmts ihat dcpcnd on an indcx or a rale, aDd amourls cxpectcd to be paid undet residual

value guaradeG. The lcasc p4rrDcnts also include thc.rcrcisc price ofa puchasc option tcasonably certain to be cxqcis€d by lhe

Company and payrnots of pcnaltics fm tcrminating thc lease. if the lcasc tffm rEflccls the Company cxacising the option lo

lerminal,c. Variablc lcssc paynrents thal do not dcpcnd on an indcx or a tate are tccognis€d &s cxpsrscs (uDlcss they arc incurred lo

produc€ invcntorics) in lhc pcriod in which lhe evcflt or condition that triggcrs lhc payrncnt occurs.

In calculating the present value of leasc payicnls, thc Cofipany us6 ils incr.aEr el borrowinS ratc at the lcsse commmcemenl

date becausc thc interest ritc implicil in lhc lease is not rcadily dd.rminablc. Aftcr thc coruncnccrn€ot date, the arnount of lease

liabiliti6 is incEascd to rcllcct thc accraion of intcr.si and raduced for dre lcase paymcnts rnadc. In lddition, thc carrying arnount

oflease liabilities is remeaiurcd ifthcre is a rnodificaion, a chanSe in the l€asc t€flrf a changc in the lcasc paymcnts (e.8., changes

ro funlre paymcnts rcslrlting from a chshgc in an indcx or rate uscd to daerminc such lease payrEots) or a chanSc in th€

ass€ssm.Dt ofaa option to purchas€ lhc unddlybg assct.

C. Short tcrm la$rs and lciacs of lot-valua attats

The Coopany applics thc short-tfim lcasc rccognition cxcmption to its short-tfim laases i.e., $osc l.ascs that hsvc a leas€ tcrm of
12 months or lcss from thc coi[nqrccmant date and do not contain a purchasc oplion. lt also applies thc l€asc of low-valuc assets

recognition cxcrnptioD to lqses that arc considered io b€ low value. Lcasa paymcnts on shon-tqm leasas and lcases of low-valuc

assets arc racogDrsad as ctpeosc on a straight-linc balis ovcr thc lea& t.rrn

Whare th. CoDprry ls thc lcssor

Leases in which thc Company does not transfcr substantially all lh. risks and raweds incidcntal to o*ncrship of thc ass€t arc

€lassified as opcrating leas.s. Ass.ts subjert to opcrating lcas€s are includcd undcr Inv6tmcnt propcrty.

L.asc income fiom opemting lcase is rccognizcd on a strai8hdine basis ovcr thc tcrm of thc relcvant lcasc includinS lcase incomc

on fair velue ofrEfimdsblc sccurity deposils, unless the lease agreemcnt cxplicidy ststcs that increasc is on account of inflation.

Costs, including dcpreciation, arc recognizcd ali sn cxpcnse in thc stltamcnt of ptolit and loss. Initial dircct costs incurred in
n€otiating and alranging an opcrating lcasc arc addcd to lhe carrying anount ofthc lcascd ass€! and resogniscd ovcr the lcas. term

on $e same basis at rcntal incornc,
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C.sr Grrndc V.lllm Priv.le Limitcd
Notes to finrncial strtcmenls for lhc period ended 3l Mrrch 2024
(All ankNnts u( in Llillio r. unless othe,at.re stated)

(l) Borrorrdbg costs
BorrowinS costs consist ofintercsl and other costs fiat an enlity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

BormwinS costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, con$ruction or production ofan asset rhat necessarily takes a substantial
period of lime to gct ready for ils intmdcd usc or sale are capilalized/inventorised as pa( of the co6l of the respective assel. All
other borrowing costs are charged lo slatement of profit and loss.

The Company trcats as pan ofgcncral borrowings any bonowing originally rnade to develop a qualirying asset wh€n subsontially
all of the activities necGsary to prepar. $at asset for ils intended use or sale are conplete.

0) Invcitorl.s
Dirccl expcnditure relating to r€al cslate activity is iDvcDtorised. Other experditure (includirg borrowinB co6ls) durinS construction
pcriod is inventorised to lhe extent thc cxpanditurc is diretly attribulable cost ofbringing the asset to its working condition for its
intendcd usc. Othcr cxpenditurc (inchding borrowing costs) incurr€d during the construction period which is not directly
attributablc for bringing lhe assct to its working condition for its intended use is charged !o the staternent ofprofit and loss. Dirccl
and othcr cxpcndinf. is detcrmined bascd on spccific ideitificadon to the real cstatc activity.

i. Worl-iu-progrcss: Rcprescnls cosl incurrcd ib r6p€ct ofutrsold area (including land) of lhe real estate developnEnt projects or
cost incuncd on projccts wherc thc revmuc is yet to bc rcc-gnized. Work-in-prog6s is valucd at lower ofcost and nct rcalizblc
valuc.

ii. Finishcd goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lowcr ofcost snd net rcalizable value.
iii. Raw materials, componcnts and storas: Valucd at low.r of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined bascd on FIFO
basis.

iv. Lend stock: Valucd at lower ofcost and nct realizable value.

Net rceliablc valuc is the estirnated selling price in thc ordinary cous€ of business, l6s estirnated costs of conplction alld
estimatcd cosls nccessa4/ to makc thc salc.

(k) Lrnd
Advanccs paid by lhe Company to the seller/ interrn€diary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance under

olher asscl{ during thc course ofobtaining cl€ar and nu*etablc title, free ftom all encumbrallces and transfer of legal title to the

Company, whereupon it is transf€rred to land stock under inventori€s/ capital work in progress.

Land/ development riShts rcceivcd undcr joint devclopment arrangemcnts ('JDA') is measurcd at the fair value of the .stihatcd
constnrction scrvice rcndcred to lhe land ol*'rl€f 8nd the sarne is accounted on launch of the project. The amount ofnon-rcfundable
deposit paid by thc Company undcr JDA is recognizcd as land advance under other asscts &nd on the launch of the projecl thc non'
refundablc amount is transfcncd as land cost to work-in-progrcsJ capital wort in progrcss. Fu(hcr, the arnount of rcfundable

deposit paid by thc Company under JDA is recognized as deposits under lmns.

C) R.vcnuc r.cottltlon
A, R.v€Buc r.cogDlilotr
1 (l) Rcv.Duc frcEr cootracta *lth curtomat.

Revcnue from contracts wi$ custorners is recognised when control ofthc goods o. s€rvices are Fnnsfetred to the cuslom6 at an

afirount that rcllccB thc consida'ation to which lbc Conpany expccts to be entitled in exchange for lhos€ gods or servic€s.

RcvcDuc is maasrred based on thc transactiotr pricq which is the cfisid€r"atioD, adjustcd for discou!6 and other crcdits, ifaDy, as

spccified in thc coltact with $c customcr. Thc CompaDy presqrls revmue from coDt acts with customeB nct of indilcct tal6 in
its staterncnt ofprofit .nd lo6s.

Thc Compsny considqs whcthcr lhcrE ,rc oth6 promiscs in Ihc contract that arE scparate psfonna.ncc obligrtions to which .
ponion of thc traDsaction price ne€ds to bc alloc{cd. In dctcrnining thc nansaction pricq the Compary consideG the cffccls of
variable consid.'^ation, thc cxistcncc ofsigrificrnt fDsncing corpoflcots, noDcash consideration, and considoation pa)ablc to lhc
cuslomcr, ifaDy.

Rcvcnuc from ral cstst devcloprncot of residGnlial unit is rccognised at tie point in tirne, whan thc control of thc 8ssa is
tra$fcncd to thc custorb.r, which gcocrally coincid.s with tr.nsf6 ofphysical possession of6c resideDtial unit to tbc cuslonFr
i.c.., handov€f,/ darnrcd handovd of lhc rdidcntial units. D6mcd hardovq ofthe rGidcntial units is considcred upon intirnation to
lhc customcrs about rcccip! ofoccupanry ccnificatc and rcccipt ofsubsta ial sale considelatior.
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Casa Grande Vallam l'rivate Limitcd
Notes to finrncial stalements for thc pcriod elded 3l March 202,1

(All auounts ora n thllions. u,llcss oth(t,-ise stated)

Revcnue consists of salc of undividcd share of land and cons(ructed area to lhe customcr, which have bcen identified by the

Company as a singlc pcrformancc obligation, as thcy arc highly intcrrclatcd/ intcrdcpcndent.

The perfomance obligation in relation to real estate dwelopment is satislled upon completion of projecr work and fansfer of
control of the assct lo the customer.

For conlracls involvin8 sale of r€al estate unit, the Company receivcs the consid€mrion in accordancc wirh the terms ofthe contmct
in proponion of lhe percentage of complction of such rcal cstatc project and represenls payments nrade by cuslomers lo secure

performance obligation of the Company under the conlrict cnforceable by customers. Such consideralion is received and ulilised
for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Eslate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.

Consequently, fie Company bas concluded that such contracts with customers do nol involve any financing element since the same

arises for reasons explained above. which is other than for provision offinance to/from the customer.

Fu(her, for projccts €xecuted through joint developrnent arrangenrents not being jointly controlled opcrations, wherein $e land

ownca/posscssor provides land and thc Company undcnakcs to dcvclop pmpcrlics on such land and in licu ofland owncr providing
land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentagc of constructed area or ce(ain pcrcentage of the revcnue proceeds, the

rcvenue from the dcvclopment and farNfer of consfucted arca./ revenue sharing arangemeDt in exchange of such development
rights/ land is being accounted oD gross basis on launch of thc project. Revmue is recognised ovcr ti r€ using input melhod, on the

basis of the inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation rclative to the total expectcd inpub to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation-

The revmuc is m€asured at the fair value ofthe land rcceivcd, adjustcd by the amount ofany cash or cash equivalenls Iransferrcd.
When the fair valuc of the laad receivcd cannot bc mcasurcd rcliably, the rcvcnue is measurcd at thc fair value of $e cstimaled

construction scrvicc rendered to thc land owncr, adjusted by thc amount ofany cash or cash equivalcnts transfened. Thc fair value

so cstimated is considcred as the cost of land in the compulation ofpercentaSe of completion for the purpos€ of revenue recoSnition

as discuss€d abovc.

Recogtrition of rev.ruc from srl. of hnd.nd d.v.lopmcnl rlghts:
Revcnue from salc ofland and dwclopmcnt rights is r.cogniscd upon transfo ofall significant risks and rcwards of ownership of
such real estatdproperty, as per the lerms ofthe conracE cnlered inlo wilh buyers, which generally coincides wilh the firmin8 of
the sales contracts/ag!€ements. RevenDe from sale oflard and development rights is only recogniscd when transfer of le8al title to
the buyer is not a condition precedent for transfer ofsignificaDt risk and rewards ofowrership to ihe buyer.

Rccoghitlon of ravcttue from lntador work! ard sala ofcorcrctc prodoats rnd scrrp:
Revenue is rccognised when contsol of the goods are transfcrrcd to lhe customcr at an anrount thal raflects the considcralion l,o

which the Compaoy cxpects to bc cntitled in exchangc for thos. goods. Revenuc excludes indirect tarcs and is affer deduction of
any trade discounts.

Rccoghidon of tcvcnu€ fiortr rnrlntehahcc lDd other i€rvlceal
R€vcnu€ in resp€ct of maintcnance scwices and othcr servicG is r€coSnised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms ofthe
resp€ctive cootract as and wheIl the Cortpaoy sati!fics pcrfornaacc obligations by dclivering thc *rvices as p€r conEacNal agr.rd
tcrms.

Income from Property DeYelopment:

The Company has dctermined that the existing tenns of lha contracl uidr customds does not meet the criteria to recognisc revenue

over a period of timc. Revcnue is recotnizcd at point iD timc with resp€ct !o coDtracls for sale of r€sidctrtial and corDmercial unirs

as and when thr confol is passed on to the customers which is linked to the application and reccipt ofoccupancy certificatc.
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Cssr Grrnde vrllam Prirrte Limilcd
Noles to finrncial strtements for the period €llded 3l Mrrch 2024
(,111 annunts orc in ltlillions, unless olleNisc stated)

Srle ofMsterials, Land snd Dcvclopntcnt Rights:
Revcnue is recognized at point in tim€ with rcspect to confircts for sale ofMaterials, Land and DevEloplDmt Rights as and when

the control is passed on lo the customcrs.

r. (ii) Contruct brhnces
Contmct assct is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfeted to the customer. If (he Company perforrns

by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a conracl assel is

recognis.d for the eamed consideration lhat is conditional.

Tiadc receivable rcpr6ents thc Cornpany's right ro an anount ofconsideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage oftime
is required before payment ofthe considcr:tion is due).

Contract liability is thc obligation to t-ansfer goods or scrviccs to a customcr for which thc Company has re€civcd consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) fiom the customer. lf a customer pays consideration bcfiore the Company tr sfers Soods or

s€rvices to thc custorner, a confact liability is recognis€d when the payricnt is made or lhe payrnent is due (whichever is earlier).

ConEacl liabililies are rdogEiscd as rcvenuc when the Company perfomE under the conEact.

r. (iii) Coit to obtrin r contnct
The Cornpany recognisc.s as an asset thc incrcmcnlal costs of obtaining a contract with a customcr if thc Company cxpccls to

recovar thosc costs, The Company incurs cosls such as sales cormrission whcn it cnters into 6 new conuact, which are directly

relatcd to winning thc conracl The asset recognis€d is amortised on a syslanatic basis $at is consisteDt with the transfer to the

customcr ofthe goods or servic€s to rvhich thc ass€t relat6.

b. l,crsc income
The Company's policy for recognition ofrevenue from opcrating leas€s is describ€d in nole 2.2(h)-

c. Shrr in profil/ loss of Limited Li.btllty Prrtn€r.hips ("LLPS') rrld prrtncrship firrn
The Company's sharc in profiMosscs from LLPs and paltncrship {irm, wherc fie Company is a partner, is recognised as

incomc,4oss in thc slatcrncnt ofprofit and loss as and whfi lhe right to rcaaivc ils profi/ loss shate is establishcd by the Company

in accordance with lhe terns ofcontract b.tween the Company and lhe paltnership entity.

B. Oth.r Income
a.Interest incohe

lntfiesi income, iocluding income arising from olher financial instrumenls mcasurcd at arDonis:ed cost, is rccognised using the

effectivc interest mte mcthod.

b, Dh,ld.nd hcom.
Revcfluc is rrcogniscd whor the Conpany's right to rEccivc dividefld is Gtablished, which i3 gcncrally whco sharcholders approvc

lhc dividGrd.

(m) Forclgn cur€my lrrnslatlon
Functional and prcscntation currcncy :

ItcrB includcd in thc finsncial staGnEnts of $c Conpany are mcasurcd using the curracy of tha prirury economic environmcnt

in rvhich lhe Conpany opcrat s ('the tunctional curr6cy'). Thc finarcial statdnents ar. precntcd in Indian rupcc (INR / a), wbich

is the Company's functional rnd pr€sctttation curency.

I

CHENNAI

,1Y
s



Crsa Grande Vsllam Priratc Limilcd
Notes to finrncial statemenls for lhe period endcd ll iltarch 202{

t-4 anounts arc in Mi ions. unlcss otheneise stotcd)

Foreign c[rrency transactions snd balances

A. Initirl recognition - Forei€! currency Eansactions are recorded in lhe reporting cunency. by apPlying lo lhe foreign currcncy

amount rhe exchDge mte berwe€n the reporring currency and the fbrcign currency at the date of the Eansaction-

B. Conversion - Foreigr currency monetary items are reEanslated using the exchange rate prevaihng at the rePo(ing dale. Non-

rnonelary itcrns, which are measured in terns ofhislorical cost denominated in a foreig cunency, are rcponed using the exchange

ratc at the datc ofth€ !.ansaction. Non-monetary items, which arc measurcd al fair value or other siftilar valuation denominatcd in

a forcign curreflcy, are translated using the exchangc ralc at lhe date whm such value was det€rmined'

C. Exch.ngc differ.nces - The Company accounG for exchange diffcrences arising on translatior/ settlcment of foreign currency

ftronetary itcns as incorne or as exPense in the pe.iod in which ficy arise.

(n) Rdir.mcnt .nd othcr cmploycc bcnelits

Retiremcnt bcncfits in the form ofslatc govcmcd Employcc Provident Fund and Employc! Shtc Insurancc arc defined conlribution

schemes (mllcctively lhe 'schemcs'). The Company has no obligation, other than the cootribution payable io lhe Schemes. The

coDpaDy racogniz€s contribulion payable to thc schcmes as expendiNre, wheD an employe€ re ders thc related service. The

"ooGbution 
p"id io o"ess of amount due is rccognizcd as atr assct and the contribution due in excess ofamount paid is recogDized

as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrucd based on an indepmdent actuarial valuation, which is donc based on projecl

unit crcdit mcthod as at thc balancc shc€t date. Thc Compady recognizcs (hc nct obligation of a defincd bcncfit plan in its balancc

she€t as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measuremenls of th€ net defincd benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in

other comprahcisive income- In accordaDce with lnd AS, re-measuremenl gairN and losscs on defined bcnefil plans recoSnized in

OCI arc n;t to b. subr€quently reclassified to statcmeor of profit and loss. As required undcr ldd AS compliant Scbedule III' thc

Cornpany recognizcs re-measurement gains and losscs on defined bencfit plans (net oftax) to retained €amin8s.

The Cornpany trcats accumutatcd lcave €xpected to be carried forward bcyond twelvc months, as long{em cmploy€€ benefit for

measuremcnt purposes. Such long-term compensatcd abscoces are providcd for based on the sctuarial valuation using lhe Projected

unit credit mahod, made ar the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains,4osses are immediately taken to the statement of Profit

a.nd loss. The Cornpaty presents th€ accufNlatcd tqve liability as a currcDt liability in thc balaoce she€t, sinc. it does nol have all

unconditional right to defer ils settlemmt for t$elve rnonths afrer thc reporting date.

(o) lncome a.xas

lncome tax cxpense compris€s cu[ent tax expms€ and the net change in the deferred tax assd or liability during lhe year.

Cu.reot and defered tax are rc.ogrized in ihe statern.nt ofprofit and loss, except whm thcy relate to itcris that are recognized in

other co[prchcnsivc inconE or directly in cquity, in which casc, thc current and defared tax are also rccotnized in oder

compreh.flsivc incorne or dircctly in equity, resPetivcly.

A. Currcnt lncomc trr
Curr@t incoirc tax ass€ls and liabilities are mcasurcd at the amount expected to be rccovered ftom or paid to the taxalion

authoritier. Thc tax rates and lax laws ured to compute the amount are those that arc enacted or substantively macted, at the

rcponhg data wh€re thc CoDpany opcrates and Scncratcs taxable iDcomc.

Currqlt inconrc tax relating to ilerB recagnis€d oubide profit or loss is r€cognised outside Profit or loss (eilher in olher

comprehc sivc incornc or in cquity). Current tax irans art recogniscd in correlatioo to lhc undcrlying tt-ansaclion cithq in OCI or

dircctly in cquity. Management periodically cvaluat s posiions takcn in the tax rctums with rcspcct to situations in which

applicablc ux rcgulations arc subject to interpretation snd considcF whdhcr it is probablc that a taxation aulhority will accept ao

u;emin tar t,tain€nl The company shall rellcct the effect of uncerlainty for cach uncst in tax treament by using either most

likely mcthod or cxp€cted value metho4 depcnding on vhich method predicts better resolution ofthe treatrncnt.
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Casa Grande Vallam I'rivatc Limitcd
Notes (o financirl sratemenrs lbr thc pcriod ended 3l Mrrch 202,1

(All ot,nunts aft n Million\. unk'ss otltcrws( skttel)

B. Deferrcd incomc tar
Deferred income lax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, defercd tax is rccognized on tempor.ry differcnces at the

balancc shcct datc bctwccn thc lax bascs of asscts and liabilitics and thcir carrying amounls for financial rcponing purposcs, cxccpt
when dre deferred income tax ariscs from thc in(ial recognition ofgood*ill or an ass€t or liability in a transaction thal is not a

business combi.ation and sff€crs ncither accourtina Dor taxable profir or loss at lhc time of the transacrion.

Deferred income lax asse6 arc rccognizcd for all deductible temporary differmces, carry Iorward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the €xtcnt that it is probablc that laxable profil will bc availablc against which rhe deduclible lemporary differenccs.
and the carry forward ofunused tax credils and unused lax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amou[t of defened incomc tax assets is reviewed at each balance shed dalc aDd reduced lo the extent lhat il is no

longer probable (hat suffcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pan ofthe dcfcrred income tax asset to beutilizcd.
DefeTred incorn€ tax asscts and liabilities are rneasured at llle tax ratcs thal arc cxpecled to apply in the pcriod whm thc asset is

realized or lhe liability is senl.d, bascd on tax rates (and tar laws) that havc bcm enacted or subslantively mactcd al the balance

sheet date.

Defeflrd iax relating to itcrhs r€cogniscd oulsid. profit or loss is recogDiscd outsidc profil or loss (ei(hcr in othcr cornprehcnsive

income or in equity) in conelation to lhe undcrlying Eansaction either in O{l or in cquity.

Minimum Altefiatc Tax (MAT) crcdit is recogniscd as an assct only wh6l and lo (hc cxtenl thde is convincing evidcncc that the

Company will pay normal lax duriag thc spcaified pcriod. Such assel is rcviewcd at .ach Balancc Sheet date and lhe carrying
amount of tbe MAT credil asset is writtcn down lo lhe cxlent there is no longo a convincing cvidence !o thc eflcct that lhe
Company will pay normal lax during thc specified pcriod. In thc samc way, Altcrnatc Minimuh Tax (AMT) is rEcognised for LLP.

(p) Provlslons rnd conthg.nt ll.bllld.s
A provision is recoSnizcd whcn thc Company has a prcscnt obliSation (lcgal or consEuctive) as a resuh of past evcnt, it is probablc

that an outflow of resourcd .rDMyiDg economic brrefirs will be requircd to s€ttle (hc obligation and a reliable eslimate call bc
rnade of the anDorrt of thc obligation. If thc cffcct ofthc tirnc valuc of moncy is.natcrial, provisions a.e discountcd using a cunmt
pre-tax rate that reflecls, whcn appropriate, lhc risks spcaific (o th.liability. wllc.rl discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to lhe passage oftime is recognizcd as a financc cmt.
A condngmt liability is a possible obligation that ari*s from p3st cverls and whosc existcnce will be confirmcd only by the

occurmce or non-occurmce ofone or morE uncertain firturc evenls nol wholly wilhin the control ofthe Company or a pr6ent
obligation that is not recogniz€d because it is not probablc that an outflow of rcsourc€s will be required to senle the obligation. A
contin8enl liabiliry also ariscs in cxEeflely rarc cases whcre thcrc is a liability lhat cannot ba recognized b€cause it cannot be

measured reliably. Thc Coopany does ool rccognizc a contingcnt liabiliry bu! discloses it in lhc financial stalerhcnb, unless tbe
possibiliw ofan outflow of resourccs emMying economic b€nefits is reflote.
Ifthe ConpaDy has a con!'act that is onerous, the pr6ent obligation undcr fie conu-act is reaognised aod mcasur€d as a provision.

Howcvcr, bcforE a s@amtc povision for an ooaous contract is 6tablish.d, thc Compsny r6o8nis6 any impairrncnt loss that has

occurcd on asscts dcdicatcd l,o that contract.

A contingcnt assct is a possiblc assct that ariscs from pasl c.,,ents and whosc cxistcncc will bc confirmcd only by thc occrl'r. cc or
non-occurrcnce ofone or nrore uncgtain futurc evcnb not wholly witbin lhe conEol ofthc mlity.

CoDting€[t ssscis arE D.ithar rccogDiscd nor disaloscd cxcapt !r'hcn rcalisation of incornc is viroally cenai!, rclated assct is

disclo6ed.

(q) Fitr.rcl.l Irsrr|m.nG
A finarcial instrufi.rt is any contract that givcs ris. to a fDaDcial assct ofonc cntity and a financial liability or equity instflm.nt
ofanothcr entity.
Inithl racogrldor .nd maaiuraDant
Financial assels and liabilities arc initially measurcd at fair valuc, trade r€c€ivabldtradc payable that do not contain a significant
linancing component arc mcasurcd at transaction valuc and invcstm€nt in subsidiari6 all measurcd at costinS accondancc with Ind
AS 27 - s@aratc financial statcmcnl

Subsequeol ma.auramaDt Non-dcrivative financirl instnrmcnls

A. Fin.rci.l .ss.b crrl.d at amordscd cosl

A financial assct is subscquendy mcasured at alDrtiscd cost if it is hcld wilhin a business rnodcl whose objccliv. is to hold lhe

asset in ordef to collcct contractual cash flows and thc contractual tcrn$ oflhc financial assct give rise on specificd dates to cash

flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on thc principal amount ouhtanding.
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Css! Grrndc vrlhm Privrte Limit€d
Notes to linanciel st.tcments for the period ended 3l Mrrch 2024
(AIl anounts arc tn Lli ions, unless otherutse stated)

B. Finrnci.l.ssets at fair vrluc through other comprehensive incomc
Financial assc6 arc mcasurcd at fair value throuei othcr comprehcnsivc income if thcse financial asscts arc hcld within a business

whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms ofthe
financial asser give rise on sp€cified dates to cash flows thal are solely paynr€nts ofprincipal and inleresl on the principal amount

outstanding.

C. Finrncirl rssets.t frir v.lue lhrough profit or loss

Financial assets are mcasurcd at fair value through profii or loss unless it is measured at amonizcd cost or al fair value through

other comprehensive income on inilial recognition.

D, Dcbt instrum€nts rt .Bortlzed cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the arnortized cost ifboth the following conditions arc met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objeclive is to hold assets for collecting contnctual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual temls ofihe asset give rise on specifici datcs to cash flows lhat are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP[)

on the principal amount outstanding.

Aftcr initial measlrtmmq such financial ass€6 arc subsequ.ntly mcasured at arrortized cost using thc cffcctive interEst ratc (EIR)

method. AnDnized cost is calculated by tating into account any discount or premium on acquisition and f€€s or cosls that are an

integral pan of thc EIR. Thc EIR armrtization is includcd in finance income iD the profit or loss. The losscs arising from

tnpairmert arc recoSnizcd in thc profit or loas. This catcSory gcncrally applies to uade and other reccivablG.

E. Irvestfient in subridirri.s!joirt ventures rnd.ssoclates
lnvestsnent in subsidiaries, joint ventur€s and associatE .Il carried at cosL Impaiment recognized, if any, is reduced fiom the

carrying valuc.

F. De-recognitlon offiDrncl.l $set
The Cornpaoy derecogDizes a financial asset whm thc contractual rights to the cash flows from lhe linancial asset expire or it
aa.nsfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for dc-racognition under Ind AS 109.

G. Fin.nci.l li.bilities
lnitirl recognition and me.surcment

Financial liabilities are clalsified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss, Ioans and

borrowings, or as payablcs, as appropriale. Thc Company's financial liabilities include tradc and othcr payables, loans and

borrowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequcnt m.asurcm€rt offinancial liabilities dcpcnds on thet classification, which is

described below.

Subsequ€rt mc$ureln.rtt Non-dcrivative financial instrumenb

Ii. Finrncirl llrbilitlcs rl filr vrluc through profit or lois
Financial liabilities at fair valuc through profit or loss include financial liabilities hcld for trading and financial liabilitie't

desigated upon initial rccognition .s at fair \aluc through profit or loss- Financial liabilitic art classified as held for trading if
they arc incurred for lhe pu4ose ofrepurchasing in the nea! t€rm.

I. Firrncirl lirbllldca rt rmortized cost

FinaDcial liabilitics arc subsaquaotly measued at amonized co6t using the effective interest ('ElR') mcthod. Gains and loss6 8re

recogtrizgd in prolit or loss wh.n the liabiliti€s arE dcroognizcd as well as tkough the EIR amortizltion process. AEortized cost is

calculat€d by taking into accou.rt any discount or prnnium on acquisition and fees or costs that ar. an integral part offte EIR. The

EIR arnonization is includcd as finance costs in thc shrerncnt ofpmfit and loss.

J. Ds-recognition of ,inancirl li.bilit)

A Iinancial liability is der.cognizcd when the obtigation und6 tbc liability is discharged or cancelled or cxpires. When an cxisting

financial liability is rcplaced by another from the sanrc lcndcr on substantially differot terms, or the tcnns of an existing liability

arc substantially modificd, such a, exchanSc or modi(ication is tseated as the datcognition of thc original liability and thc

recognidon ofa ncl,, liability. Thc differEnce in the cspective carryinS amouob is recognized in the statemcnt ofprofit or loss.

t Asso
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Casr Grande VaUam l'rivrtc I-imilcd
Notes 1o financial statcments for lhc period cndcd .31 Mar(h 202'l

t-4I a n,unts arc in Milliotts, unlcss otherulise stated)

K. Fair vllue mcasurement
Fair value is rhc price lhar would be receivcd to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

panicipanrs ar the measurem€nl date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction b sell the asse!

or transfer the liability lakes place either:

>ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

>ln the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the fiost advantageous market must be accessiblcbythe Company-

Thc fair value of an asset or a liability is measured usi.g the assumptions that rnarkct participarts would use when pricing the asset

or liability. assuming Gat market participants act in their cconomic b€st interest.

A fair value rn€asuremmt ofa non-fmancial asse! takes into accouDt a market padcipan!'s ability to Smemte economic benefits by

using the asre( in its highcst and best use or by selting it to anotha rna*6 panicipant that would u5€ the asset in its highest and

best use.

The Cornpany uses valualion tacluiqucs that are approprialc in the cilcwistances and for which sulficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximisin8 thc us€ ofrelevant obs€rvablc inputs and minimising the use ofunobs€rvable inputs.

ln dctcrmining the fair valuc of its financial instruments, thc Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on

market conditions snd risks existing at €ach rePorting d.tc.

L. Frlr vtlue hi€rrrchy:
All assc6 and liabilities for which fair value is measlrcd or disalosed in the finaflcial stalcmmts arc categorized *ithin the fair

valuc hicrarchy, ddcribed as follows, bascd on thc lowcst lcv.l input that is signil'icanl to thc fair value mcasurcrrrnt as a wholc:

s

NNEHc

Levcl I - Ouorcd (unadjusted) markct prices in aclivc matkcts for identical assets or liabilities

Lcvcl 2 Valuation techniqucs for which the lowcst lcvcl input that is significanl o lhe fair valuc measurcmcnl is direc(ly or

indirectly observable

Lcvel 3 - Valuation tecbniqu.s for whicb the lowest level iDput that is significaol to the fair value measrlrernenl is unobservable

For asscts and liabilitid that arc recognizcd in thc financial statcrnelts on a recumng b.sis, thc Cornpany detcrmines whethcr

transfers havc occurrcd bctwecn lcvels in rhe hierarchy by re-asscssing calegorizalion (based on lhe lowesl level input that is

significant !o the fair value measurement as a wholc) at the cnd of cach reporting period'

FJr the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has dcicrmined classes of asscls and liabililies on thc basis oflhe daNre,

characterislics antl risks of the asset of liability and the levcl ofthe fair value hieratchy as exPlained above.

(r) Cssh dividend to cquity hold.rs of thc Comprny

Thc company recognizes a liability to rnake cash distriburions lo equity holdcrs of lhc cornpany when thc distribution is

aurhorizcd and the distribudon is no longer at the discaction ofthc Comp€.y. Final dividcnds on shares are recorded as a liability

on the datc of approval by thc shareholdcrs and intcrim dividcnds arc rccordcd as a liability on rhe datc of declaration by the

Company's Board of Dir.ctors.

(s) Errrfngs Pcr Shrre
Basic carnings per sharc arE calculatcd by dividing thc net profit or lo€s for thc pcriod anibutable to equity shareholders by the

weighrcd aviage numb6 of cquity shar.s outsranding during thc p,eriod. Panly paid cquity sharcs are lreated as a fraction of an

cqu-iry share tote extent that ;cy are cntirlcd to paflicipatc in dividrnds relative to a fully paid equity shar. during lhc repodng

ptriod. The weighted avcrag. numb.i of equity shares outst nding dudng the period is adjusted for worts such as bonus issue that

have changcd lhe nurlr€i ofeguity shar6 outstanding without a conEsponding changc in nsourccs'

For rhc purpose of calculathg dilutcd camiags pcr sharc, $. nct ptofit or loss for thc pcriod atliibutable to equity shareholdeE a,rd

thc wcight d averagc numb€r of sh.rEs oulstanding during thc period arc adjusted for the cffects of all dilutivc potential cquity

shar6.



Casa Grande vallam Prilrle Limiled
No(cs to finsncial sta(cmcnts for lhc pcriod ended 3l Itrrch 202.1

Ull a nunts arc in nhllt 6. wl<ss otherutse stated)

(t) Cash rnd cash equivrl€nts
The Company consideE all highly liquid financial insrruments, which are r€adily conlenible inlo kno*n amounE ofcash lhat arc

subjcfl to an insignificanr risk ofchange in valuc and having original maNrities ofthrcc rnonths or l€ss from thc datc ofpurchas€.

to be cash equivalenrs. Cash and cash equival€nts consi ofbalances with banks which are unr€stricted for lr'ithdrawal and usage.

(u) Restrtcment
The Company restates its financial statements and presents a op€ning balance sheet as al the beginning ofthe preceding period ifit
applics an accounting policy rctlosp€clively, mal€s a retrospective restatenr€nl of items in ils linancial slatenrcnls or reclassifies

ircms iD its financial statemenE that has a malerial effect on thc information in thc balance sheet at the beginning ofthe pre{eding

pcriod.

The Company corrects material prior period crmrs relrospectivcly in thc first s€t ol financial statemmts approvcd for issue aftrr

thcir discovery by (a) restatinS the conparative amounE for (hc prior pfriods prGcnted in which the error occunEd; or (b) if the

error occurcd before lhe earliest prior period presentd, reslating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the

earliest prior period preseflted.

(v) SeSm€nt reporting
In accordancc with Ind AS 108 - Opcrating Segment, thc opemting segments uscd to prcs€nl segment infonnation are idmlified on

thc basis of inforrnation rcviewc{ by the Company's managemen( !o allocalc rcsourccs to thc scSmc{|ts and ass6s lheir

pcrfonnance. An operating segment is a component of lhc Company that (,lgag6 in business activitiG fiom *'hich il eams

rex/enucs aDd incurs expenses, including reveaues and erpcnses that relate to Oansactions witb ary of the Cornpany's olher

corqroncnts. Results ofthe opcrating scsmeDls are revicwcd regularly by the Managing Director who has been idcDtified as the

chicf opcraring decision makcr (CODM), to rnakc decisions about rcsourccs !o be allocated to the segment and assess its

pcrformance.

Prcs€ntty, the Conpany is engaged in only one segmc$t viz 'Rcal estate and allird activitics' and as such there is no s€pamte

reponablc segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segmenls'. The Cornpany has opc'ations only within lndia.

Accordingly, the segnrnt rcvcnuc, scgrneot r€sults, tolal carrying alnou.dt of scgricnt assets and scgmcflt liability, lotal cost

incurrcd to acquire segmmt ssscts and lolal amount of charge for depreciation during the p6iod, is as reflect.d in (he financial

statemcnls as of and for lhc ycar ended 3 I March 2024.

2J Sig[lficrnt rccounting iudgmentq estimtaes rnd rssumptions

The prcparation offinancial statcments requires management to rnake judgmenls, estimatas aod assumptions lhat aflect the reported

balanccs ofrcvenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanyiDg disclosulcs, aDd the disclosue of contingent liabilities.

Unc.rtailty about rhese judgmenls, assumptioDs aod cslinuies could result in outcomes that require a nraterial adjustnent to the

carrying amount ofass€ts or liabilities aflected in future petiods.

In thc proccss of applying thc Company's accounting policies, rnanagement makcs judgcrnar! eslimates and assumptions which

have thc most significant elfect on the amounts recoSnizcd in ihe financial statcrncnts.

The kcy judgcments, 6tillutcs and sssumplions conccrning thc future and olhcr kcy sourccs of cstirnation unccflainty at the

Eporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a rnatcaial adjustrnent 1o thc carrying amounts ofassels and liabilities within

thc ncxt financial year, arc dcscribed below. Thc Company bascd its judBem.nts, sssumptions and cstimates on parameteE

availablc when the financial stalqnents were preparcd. Existng circuDstanccs aDd assumptioDs about futurc dcvelopments,

howcv6, may cha[ge duc to markct chaDg€s or circumstances arising that alc bcyond thc confiol of lhe Company. Such changes

arE rcfl.ctcd in the assumptions whcn they occut.

* CHENNAI



Casa Gr!ndc Vallam Priv!(c Limitcd
Notes to financi:rl statements for lhe period cnded -ll March 202.{

lA aN)unts lt? n Mi ions. u l(ls othe,\ise nokd)

A) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the follorving 
.J 
udgements that significantly alTect the delcrmination of the amount and timing of revenue

from coDtEcts with customtrs:

.. (i) Identilic.tion ofp€ ormrrcc obligatio[
Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area lo the customer, which have been identified by the

Company as a single performance obligation, as lhey are highly inlenelated,/ interdepcndent. In assessing whether performance

obligations relating !o sale ofundivided share of land and constructed arca are highly interrelated/ interdependent, the Company
considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed arca on its own or together with olher
resourccs readily available to the customer.

- whether the entity will be able io fulfil its promisc und€r dre contract, (o lransfcr the undivided sharc ofland wilhout transfer of
constructed area or transfer the conslruckd area without tsansfer ofundivided sharc ofland.

r, (ii) Timing ofs.tisfrcdon of performuce obllgltlol

Revenue from sale of real 6tat. units is recogniscd when (or as) control of such unils is lransferred to the custorler. The enlity
as$sses timing of transfer of control of such units Lo thc cuslomefi as lransf€f,red over timc ifon€ ofthc following criteria are met:

- The customcr simultaneously rcccives and consumcs the beoefib provided by th€ cntity's perfonmncc as $c cntity performs.

- The cntity's pcrfomBnce creales or enhances an assct that the customer confols as lhe asset is created or enhanced,

- The entity's pdfonnance docs not crcale an assct wilh an altcmativc us€ to the efltity and the entity has a, cflforceable right to
paynent for perfonnance completed lo date.

lfcontrol is not Eansfenrd over time as above, lhe cntity considcrs thc same as traosferred at a point in time.

For contracts where control is transfenEd at a point in time lhe Company considers lhe following indicalors of the transfer of
control of the assct to the cuslomcr:

- When the cntity obtairs a present right to payment for the assct.

- When the entity transfers lcgal tide ofthe asset to the custoDer-
- Whcn the entity transfers physical possession of the asset to thc custonr€r.

- Whm the entity transfers siSnificant risk and rewads ofownership oflhe asset !o the customer.
- When the customer has accepted the ass€t.

The aforcsaid indicalors of transfcr of contsol are also considcred for dctermination of thc timing of derccognition of investmmt
property.

b) AccountlnS fot r.yctruc rDd hnd cost for projccai crcc[tcd througb jolDl devclopm.rt rrrrDgcmcnts ('JDA')
For projects cxecut d through joint development arrangcnrnts, thc Company has cvaluatcd thal land owners are nol engagd in the

same line ofbusin.ss as the Company and harce has concluded that such arrangements arE contracts with customers. The rwenue
from fie dcv.lopmcnt ard lmnsfer of constructcd arcalrevenue sharing arangcmcnt and lhc corresponding land/ developmcnt
righls reccivcd und6 rDA is rncasuled at the fair value of the estimated constuction scrvicc rendqEd to thc land owner and lhc
same is accountcd on launch of thc projecL Thc fair vatuc is cstimated with rcf€f,crcc to lhc terrns of the JDA (wheaher revcnue

share or srca shaE) aad the relatcd cost that is allocatcd to dischargc Ihe obligation of lbc Company under lhe JDA. Fair valuc of
lhc construction is considded to be thc repre$otativc fair value ofthe rcvmue Eansaclion and laDd so obtaitrcd. Such assessment is

carried out at lhc launch ofthc rcsl estate poject and is not reassesscd at cach reporting period. The management is ofthe view that

the fat valuc mahod and cstimatcs are reflectivc of thc currmt markct condition.

c) SlgDlflc.nt linrDclng cotrrpor.nt
For conu-acts invoMDg salc of real estate unit, the Conpany rEccives thc considcration in accordancc with the tenns of the contract

in proportion of lhe p€rccntage of completioi of such rcal estatc projcct and reprcsents paymanb madc by customers to sccurc
perfonnancc obligation of the Company underlhe contract cnforcaable by customers. Such considn-ation is received and utilised
for specific rcal .state projccts in accordance with thc rcquircrnmls of thc Real Estate (Rcsulation and Dcvelopment) Act, 2016.

CoDscquently, thc CoryaDy has concluded that such contmcb witb customers do not involvc ally fnaocing clcrncDt sincc tbc sarE
arises for rcasons cxplained abovc, \f,hich is oth€r than for provision offinancc to/fiom thc custonr€r.

CHENNAJ=o*
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Crsr Grande Vrllsm Privatc Limited
Notes lo finrncial strtemcnts for the period ended 3l M.rch 202,1

lAll drnunts uft liitliotts, unless othet"wite stdtcd)

B. Classiricetion of property
The Company determines wh€ther a propcrty is classifi€d as inveslment propeny or inventory as below.

Invesrmenr property comprises land and buildings (principally omc€ and residendal propenies) that are nol occuPied substantially

for usc by, or in the operations of, rhc Company, nor for sale in lhe ordanary course ofbusiness, but are held primarily to eam rental

income and capiral appreciarion- These building/gs are subsunlially renl€d lo knants and not intcnded to bc sold in lhe ordinary

course ofbusiness,

lnvmtory compriscs propcrty that is hcld for salc in lhc ordinary coursc ofbusiness. Principally, this is residmtial and conmcrcial

propeny $at the Company develops and intends to sell before or during lhe course of construclion or upon completion of
con$flclion.
Estirnation ofner realizable value for inve[tory and land advance :

lnventory is sraled at the lower of cost and net realizabla value (NRv).

NRV for completed invantory property is assessed by refere,lcc to market conditions and priccs existing at the reporting date and is

determined by the Company, bas€d on compamblc Eahsactions identified by lhe Company for propettics in the samc geogmphical

nurkc( serving thc same real astate scgmeflt.

NRV in rEspect ofinventory propcrty undcr consrucdon is asscsscd with reference to rna*ct pric6 at the reportinS date for similar

completed property, less cstirnatcd costs lo complete construction aod an eslimatc of thc time value of money to the date of
completion.

With respect to land invcntory and land advancc given, the net rccoverable value is bas€d on the present value of future cash flows,

which d€p.nds on thc cstirnatc oi among other lhings, the likclihood tha( a projcct will be completed. the cxpect.d datc of

completion, the discount ratc us€d and thc cstimalion of salc prices and consEuction costs.

C. lmpriment oI notr-rin.rcirl rs.ets
Irpairment exisls whcn thc carDnng valuc of an ass€t or cash 8€nerating unit excecds its recovcrable a.rnoun! which is thc higher

ofits fair valuc less coss of disposal and ils valuc in usc. Thc fair value less costs ofdisposal calculation is based on available data

fiom binding sales lamactious, conductcd at arm's lergth, for similar asscls or obscrvable market prices lcss incrcmental costs for

disposing ofthe asset. Tie value in us€ calculation is bascd on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budSet for the

next five years and ilo not include resEucturing activities lhat the Company is not yet corDmitled lo or significan! futurc

investrneDts that will enhancc the asset's perfodance ofthe CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is senstive to the discoult

rate used for the DCF modcl as w.ll as the expected futurc cash-inflows and the growth raG used for extrapolation purposcs. Thcse

estirnatcs ar. most rclevant to disclosure of lair value of invesgnen! property recordcd by the Comprny.

D. Defined ber.fit phn, - Gratulty
Thc cost of lhe dcfincd ben.fit graruity plan and oihcr post-employman! medical berrefiG and the pr€sent value of the Sratuity

obligation ar. detamined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves makinS various assumptions that nuy dilfer

from actual developm€nti in thc future. Thesa include thc detcrmination oflhc discount iatc, futurc salary increascs and rnortality

rates. Due to the complexifies involvcd in the valuation 8nd its long-term naturc, I dc{ined bcnefit obliSation is highly sensitive to

chalgcs in thesc assurnptions. All assumptions ara revicwcd at cach reporting date.

The paramcter rest subjcct !o change is lh. discount mtc. In detcrmining lhe appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India,

the management consid.ts the int r€st ratcs of govcrnrhcrt bonds. The mortatity rate is bas€d on publicly avai lable riortality tablcs.

Those mortality tablcs tend to change oDly at intcrval in responsc to demgraphic changes. Futurc salary increases are bas€d on

€xpccted fufure inflatioD r-rtes aod cxpaatcd sslary infiease 6aeon.

E. Maasuram.trt of llnarclal lnstruinahts at rmortizcd cost

Financial instrument arc subsequcntly measurcd at amoniz€d cost using lhe elfective interest ('EIR') method. The computation of
armnized co6! is smsitive to lhe inpub ro EtR including effective mtc of intcrcst, contmdual cash flows and thc expe.tcd life of
the financial insEumcnt. Changes in assumplions about these inputs could affec( the reported value offinancial instrum@ts.
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Crsr Gr.nde Vrllam Priv.le Limit€d
Notes to finatrcirl strt€ments for the period eDded 3l Mrrch 202.1

(All anounts a|e in Millions. unless other||6? stated)

F, Useful life and residual v.lue ofproperq, plant rnd equipmenl
The useful life and residual value ofproperty, plant and equipmenl is delermined based on evaluation made by lhe management of
thc cxpcctcd usagc of thc assea, thc physical wcar and tqu and lcchnical or commcrcial obsolcsccncc of lhe assct- Duc to the

judgernenrs involved in such estinratcs the useful life and r6idual value are sensitive to the actual usage in firture p€riod.

G. Provisioll for litigrtions rnd contingencies

Provision lbr litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation madc by thc managemml of the presenl obliSation

arising from past evc'rts the setllemmt ofwhich is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying etonomic benefils, which

involvesjudgfircnts around eslimatcs lhe ultimatc outcomc of such past evenls and mcasurement of the obliSation amounl Due to
judgements involved in such estirnation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in fuhlre periods.

CHENNAI



Casa Grandc \'rll.m I'rivatc Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for th€ period endcd March 31, 2024
(All ano ts ure i tlillions. u,tlcss othe r\i sL' state.l)

3- I-orns
(Unsecued considered good unless other$rise stated, measured al amortised cost)

lVarch -11 2024

Lorns to rehted prrty
lran to related parties

lran to direciors

Total lorns carried at rmortiscd cost

CurreDt
Non-Curcnt

4. Other finrncial rsscts
(Measured at amortised cost)

2t.19

21.79

21.79

As rt
l\trrch fl 2024

lnterest accrued but nol due

Total linanchl instrumenti rt amortised aost

Current

Non-Current

5. Other ass€ts

0.78

0.7E

o.1E

As rt
l\tarch 3l 2024

Advance to suppliers

Advances for land contracts
Tax paid under protest

Total other rssets

Current
NoD Curren(

6. D€f€rred trx assets (net)/ D€ferred tar liabilities (net)

r.68
41.50

1.68

44.86

43.18

l.6E

As et
M$ch 31,2024

Deferred trx lirbilities
Property, plant and equipment

Inventory
Gross deferred tat li.bllities

Dcferred trr rsselj
Propcrty, plant atrd equipment

Inventory
Uncamed rcvenuc
Non deductible expenscs for tax purposes

Gross daferred tax asset!

Net deferred trr rsset(lirbilities)

7- Inventori€s

2.55

l_84

26.27

30.66

30.66

As rt
l\tarch 3l 2024

Work-in-progress

Raw materials, componeDts and stores

Totrl inv€naories at thc lower ofcost alld net rerlisrble vrlue

421.29

3.13

424.42

CHENNAI*



Crsa Grrndc Vrlhm Privrtc Limitcd
Nolcs to Finrncial Strtcmcnts for thc pcnod cndcd Merch Jl, 2024
(All amounts ore m Milltons, unless olherw$e stated)

t. Trrd. rcccilrblcs
(Unsecured, considered good)

Ilarch Jl 20zt
Trade receivablcs

Receivables from other related parties

Trade receivablcs ageing schcdule

67.44

t.70
69.11

Nlarch 3l 2021

Undisputcd Trodc Rcc.iv.bl.s - consid.r.d good

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment
Cunent but not due

I -€sr than 5 months

6 monlhs - I year

| -2 years

2-3 ycars

More than 3 ycars

Totrl

22.t0
47.04

______________-@)L

NIarch 3l 2021

Balalces x,ilh ba,tks:

- On current accounts

- Deposits witlr original matunty ofless than thrce mooths

Cash on hand

Total cssh snd cssh equivalent 
----__--l!JLCash at banks eams interest al lloating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-tcrm deposils are made lbr varying

periods of bet*,een one day and three months, depending on the imnlediate cash requiroments of the Company, and eam

interest at the respectlve short-term deposit rates.

10. Current tnr asset (nct)
As rt

\l arch -ll 2021

10.13

004

Advance tax

Provision for tax

Tol{l cllrrenl tax (net)

442

1.12

I l. Equity shrr. cspital Equity shercs of { l0 cach

Nunrher nt
{) Authoriscd share capital
As st Dcccmbcr 12, 2023

Inorcasc(decrcase) during the year

As rt Merch 31,2024

Rights, prcfercnc.s Nnd rcslrictions attach.d to thc cquity shrrcs
The Company has onc class ofequity sharc's viz., regular equity shares

1.50.000

Regular Equity shares Thcse equity shares are having a par valuc of{ l0 per sharc. Each shareholder is eligible for One vote

per shue held. The dividend proposed by the board is subjcct to the approval of the shareholders in the cnsuing Annual

General Meetin8, except in case ofinterim dividend. In th€ event ofliquidation, tie equity shareholders are eligible to receive

thc remaining assets ofthe Company afier dislribution ofall prefcrcntial amount. in proponion to their sharcholding.

1.50

__$q'q!0 l.s0

CHENNAI

I

9. (:ssh and cash equivolents



Casr Grandr Yallam Pri\alr Limitcd
Nolcs to Financial Slrtcments for lhr pcriod rnded \larch -l l. 202,t
(All @tamts trc ut Miuions. u less ottu|rise stnt%l)

10,000 0.t 0

I0.000

10.000

0.10

0.10

Detrils ofshrr€holders holding more th.n 57o sh.res.nd shares held by promoters ir the Comprny
As rt

Mrrch 31,2024
No. ofSh.re. 7. of Holding

Equity shrres
Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (Formerly l'nown as Casagrand Premier

Builder Private Limited)
9,900 99%

Details of changes in (he promoters holdings
As at

March 3l 2024

Equity shrres
Casagrand Prcmier Builder Limited (Formerly known as Casagrand Premier

Builder Private Limited)
Dorothy Ttornas

12. Other equit,

990/0

t%

As it
lVarch.Sl 2024

r) Ret.ined errnings
OpcriDg
Addi Additions
tJss: Utiliscd/ n'ansfcned
Irss : Transfer to Reserves

Closlng

13. Borrowin{s

2.t7

2.17

As at
March 3l 2024

A) Current borrowlngs
Unsecured
i) Lorn repryrble oD deD.trd
From related parties

Total currenl Borrowings

14. Other lin.ncial lhbiliai€s
(Carried at amortised cost

360.85

360.85

As rt
Mrrch 31,2024

Interest accrued but not due
Accrued cxpcnses

t.69
5.1I

7.00

CHENMI

u

t

Totel other Iin.nclrl lirbilltl6
Current

Non current
7.00

Equit] shares of { l0 eech

Number Amount
b) lssued shere crpitel
Ar Dccember 12,2023

lncrcase(decrease) during the year

At Mrrch 31,2024

c) Prid-up shrrc crpitrl
At Decembcr 12.2023
Incrcase(decrease) during the year

At Mrrch 31,2024 _-__4J!g_ ___--_-____qJ-9_



Casa (;randc vallam t'ri\alc I-inrited
\otcs to Finrncial S(atcmcnts for the pcri{)d rnded \larch -11, 202.1

ll anou ts are in Miltions. unless otheftise staled)

15. Other liabilities
lUarch 3l 2021

Advance from customers (including cancclled customer)

Statutory dues and related liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

50.87
0.59

t7.16

6It.62

68.62

16. Trad€ payables As at
Merch 31. 2024

Trade payables

- tolal outstalding dues ofnicro srnall aDd medium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to others

Tot.l tr.de pryrblcs

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Tot.l trade pryibles

Trade pa)ebles ageing schedule

Tot.l outstrndiDg dues of micro, sEtrl rld tDedlum cntarprlses
Irss tha[ I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 yea$

Totrl

Totd outstrDding dueE ao others
[,ess than I year

I -2 years

2-3 yean
More than 3 ycars

Totd

1.87

165.63

I67.50

165.83

1.67

As at
March 31,2024

r.87

165.59

0.M

Thc identification of Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium

Enterprises Dcvelopmeot Act 2006' is based on ioforrDation available wilh the rnanagement. As certilied by the rnanagement,

on the amounts overdue (ifany) to Micro, Small and Medium Enterpris€s on account ofprincipal amount, interest has been

accrued and will be paid to supplicrs on demand of claim. The Company has not receivcd any claim for interest from any

17, Other income

M.rch 31, 2024

Interest income
Miscellaneous income

0.06

t2.59
12.65

18. Cost of r.w mrterials, componeDts rnd stores consumed
Mrrch 3l 2024

r. Raw Ert.rial rnd componcnta consumcd

Inventory at lhe beginning of the year

Add: Purchases

tass: inventory at lhc end ofthc ycar
3.ll

(3.13)

CHENMI

b

t

Total other lirbilities
CuIrenl
Non current

r67.50

t.a7

r65.63



Case Crandc Vallam ltrivate Limited
Notcs to Financial Ststcmcnls for thc period endcd yarch 31, 2024

lAll otnotmts are in Millions, unless other$ise stated)

19. (lncreasc)/ dccreasc in stock of flats, land stock and \rork-in-progress and trrdcd goods

I\rarch 3l 2021

a) Opening balance

Work- in-progress

Completed flats

Adjustrrent to opening WIP
Total openirg belrnce

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progress

Completed flats

Totel closing brhnce

c) Totrl difference in inventory (a) - (b)

20. Finance costs

42t.29
421.29

42) .29

121.29

Mrrch 3l 2024

lnlerest on borrowings

Other borrowings costs

l,ess: Borrowing Cost traosferred to Construction activity expenses

21. Other erpenses

0.t I

0.1 I

March 3l 2024

Rates and taxes

Repa irs and m a i n tenance

Others

Advertising and sales promotion

Legal and profcssional fees

Payment to audilor (Refer details below)
Rent

0.41

2.56

2.47

0.06

0.02

0.06

5.64

Mrrch 31.2024Pryment to Auditors
As ruditor:
Audit fee

22. Tax erpense

0.02

0.02

March 3l 2024

Currert hcomc tu:
Curent income tax charge

Adjustrncnts in rcspcct of currcnt incomc tax ofprevious year

Deferr.d trr:
Relating to origination and reversal oftempomry differenc€s
ii) Non deductiblc cxpc-is.s for tax purposcs

iii) Inventory
iv) Uneamed revenue

Income tai erpense raported h the stat€ment ofprofit or loss

OCI Sectior
Net losv(gain) on renreasureDents of defined bonefit plans

Deferred t.x charged lo OCI

9.t5
(2.58)

(r.84)

4.13

CHENNAI
(-
_9

I
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C.se Grrnde velhm Privele Limited
Notes to Financial Ststcments for the period ended March 31, 2024
(All anounts are in Millions. unless otheryise stat&l)

Rcconcilirtion oflax erpense and th€ accounting profit multiplied by India's domcstic lrr ratc for NIarch 31,2024

iUarch 3l 2024

Accountint profit before incohe tax

Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate 25.l1yo
Impact ofNon-taxable income for tax purposes

lrss from Partne6hip Firm
Tax effect on account oftransition to IND AS
Deferred tax eff€ct

6.90

1.74

(1.74)
4.',7 3

Adjustrnents rccognised in the current year in relation to the curr€nt tax ofprior
years

lrcome trx exp€nsc reported in the stetement ofprofit or loss

*The Company elected to exercise thc option permitted under section I I5BAA ofthe Income Tax Act, 196l as introduced by

thc Taxation hws (Amendment) Ordinance,20l9. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Income Tax for
the year and re-measured its Defened la\ asset (orland deferred tax liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

23. Errnings pcr shrre
Mrrch 3l 2024

Prolit rttributrblc to equity holders for brsic e.rnings ( A )

Equity Shares
Number ofshares at the beginning ofthe year

Add :. shares issued during the year

Totel Numb€r of shrres outstending lt the cnd ofthe yerr ( B )

Weighted average lurnber ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effect on EPS

Weighted rver.ge number ofshares outstrnding during the yeer - Dilutcd ( C )

E.rning per sh.re of par v.lue ll0 - Brsic ( D = A / B ) (ln O
Err trg per shrre ofp.r vrlue {10 - Dilutcd (E=A/C)(IDt)

2.17

r 0.000

10,000

t0,000

10,000

211

217

b F

CHENNAI i

4.73



Casa Grandc Vsllam Privale l-imit€d
Notes 1o Financial Stllemerts for thc prriod cnded M.rch 11.2021
(Allanouttts dre i Millio,ts. u less othc,1t,ise stated)

24. Frir vrlue melsuremetrts
The dehils offairvalue measuremmr ofCompany's financial assets/liabilities arc as below

Finrnci.l rss€tsli.bilifi.s mersured rt F.irv.lue rhrough prolitloss:

L(\'cl Marrh -11 2021

IDvcstmcnts in quot€d invesirncnts -mutual funds | _

The fair ralue of the linancial assets and liabilitics is included !r ih€ amount at which thc inslrument could be exchanged in a current

tsansactioo bctu,c.n willinS parti6, olhcr than in a forccd or liquidation sale. ThcrE havc bccn no transfss trc$vcen lcEls du'in8 lhc
period.

The managemeor asselsed that th€ carryin8 valu€s of cash and cash equivalents, t-ade rcceivablc.s, shorl t€tm investments, Loans. trade

pa)€bles, borrowings and other financial asse6 and liabiliries approximate their fair valucs largely due to the shon-term maturities.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of lhc carrying amounls and fair lalue oflhc Company's financial instruments

As at
Mrrch 31,202,1

Crrryinq Vrlu€ Frir vrlu€
finrncirl Ass.t

Cash and cash cquivalcnts

[aans
Olher fnancial assets

10.17

21.19

0.78

t0.17
2t.79
0.7t

Fin.nchl Lirbllitier
Borro*ings (Currenl)

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

360.E5

167.50

?.00

160.E5

t67.50
7.00

25. Crplt.l M.nrg.mcnt
The Company's objcctives of capital managemcfll is to maximize thc shareholdcr vafue. In order to maintain or adjust lhe capilal

srructurc, the Company may adjust rhe r€tum to shareholdBs, issucl bu)back shares or scll assets !o reduce debl The Company manages

its capital structurc snd mak6 adjussnents in light ofchang€s in cconomic condilions and the r.quirdncnls ofthc financial covcnants.

Tbe Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, *hich is net dcbt divided by total cquity plus nc( debt as bclow.

.Equity includcs cquity share capital and all olhcr cquity compoocnts attsibulable to lhc cquity holders

.Net debt includcs bonowings (non-curent and curr.d), tradc payables and olher fmancial liabiliti.s, less cash and cash

cquivalants (including bank balanccs othcr thdr cash sfld cash equivalcnts snd margin moncy dcposiE wilh banl6)

Mrrch 31,2014

Bofowings (noGcurrcrt and c1rrcno

Tmde prlables
Other financhl liabiliti.s (cl,trcnt and non-cunmt)
trss: Cash and cash cquivalents(includinS balanc6 al bant olhcr than cash

and cash cquivalcnts and margin moncy dcposits with b6nks)

Net Dcbl (A)
Equity share capital

Othcr cquity

360.8s

167.50

7.00

(r0.r7)

Equlty (B) 2.27

Equity plus nct dcbt (C= A+B) 521.45

Gtaring ratio (D = A/C) 99.5?o/o

h ordcr to achicvc lhe objective of maximizc sharcbold€rs valuc, thc Compa[y's capilal manaSeE€nt, amongs! other lhrogs, sins to

cosult thlt it rnccts finsncial covcoaots aga.hcd to lhc intcrcst-bcaring bonowings that dcfinc capital sEucolc rcquirancnls. Any
significan! b.each in mcctin8 thc financial covcnants would allow the ban* to call borowings. Therc have becn no bre3ch6 in the

fi naft ial covcnanb of above-mentioned inter.slbcadng borro*in8.

No chang.s *cra rnadc io lhc objcctiv.s, policics or proc6s.s ftr nrarBging capilel durinS thc crnr ! and prcvious years.

u tsso

*

525.r8

0.10

2.t-l

CHENNAI



Cas, Grande vrllrm PriYrle Limilcd
Notes (o Finrncirl Slatemcnls for lhe period ended y.rch 31,2024

l.4llo,nottis aft h Millio s. u less ol,".ttti\e stated)

26. Fiosncirl rlsk rnrgemetrt obicctives rnd policies

Thc Company's principal financial liabilitics, comprisc borrowings, tradc and othcr payablcs. Thc main purposc of lhese financial

liabilrties is to finance lhe Company's opemlions.

The Company's principal financial assets incltde loans, (rade, other receivablss aod cash and caih cquivalents and bank balances other

than cash and cash equivalenls thal d.rive dir.ctly from ils operations-

The Company is exposed to marker nsk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management overscB the management of these

risks and cnsurcs lhat the Company's financial risk activitics alc govcmed by appropriatc policies and procedur€s and thal financial

risks are identified, measured and mamged in accordance with the ComPany's policics and risk objectives.

i- M.rkel risk

Ma*ct risk is rhe risk lhat the fair value of fliturc cash flows of a firancial instrumcnt \vill fluctualc bccause of changcs in matkcl

prices. Marker risk comprises two ty?cs of risk: int.rest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity pricc risk and commodity/ r€al_

csarc risk.

Thc sensiriviry alabsis in the following sections relate to the position as at March I l. 2024. The s€nsitivity analysis has been pr€parcd

on the basis rhat the amounr of ner dcbt and the rario of fired lo ooating intd€st Btes of thc debl. The anabsis cxcludes thc impact of
movemcnts in markel variablcs on thc carrying values of Sratuity and olher posl retiremcnt obligationJProvisions.

Thc below assumption has becn madc in calculating the scrsitivity atrat6is:

The sensitivity of thc rclwanl profir or lo6s irem is the cffect of the assumed changes in resp€ctivc market risks. This is bascd on lhe

financial assets and financial liabiliti6 held at MarEh I | , 2024.

Interest rare nsk is thc risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuatc because ofchan8.s in lnterest ra!e. Thc

cndry's cxpocurc to thc risk of chan86 in Intcrest ratcs rclatcs primarily !o lhc cntity's opclBting actvihes (wh6l rcceivabld or payablcs

arc subje€t to different intetest mtes) and th€ entily's tret r.ceivables or payables

Thc Company is affEtcd by lhc price volatiliry of ccrtain cqnrnodiricJ r.al 6tatc. Its opcrating activitics rEquirc thc ongoing

dcvclopm€nt of rcal cs6le. Th. Compatry's managcment has developed and cnacted a dsk managcmant stlal€ry tegarding commodity/

rcal 6(arc pric. nsk and its mitigadoo Thc Company is subjccl to lhc pric. risk rariablcs, which arc cxpcct d to vary in linc with thc

prevailing markct coDditions.

lntErert rrte rnslth'ity
The folowing tables dcrEonslrate thc se$itivity to a reasombty possibtc cha[gc in inrercst rates, with aU othcr variablcs beld constant

The impact on the Company's prolit bcforc tax is due to chsnSes in the fair vahc of oon-currEot and curert borrowings and olhct

currcnl and non curent financial liabilitics.
EIT€cr of Dmlit

Chrrsc ln rrte- lrclota ltr
Mirch 31,2024 + ty.

-tyo
+lo/c

-t%

Thc Company invests surplus funds i! liquid EruNal fimds. Thc CompaDy is exposed to markct price tisk arising frorn unccrtainti.s

abour firtu. \rlucs of thc inv6!n.nt. Thc Company managrs lhc cquity pricc risk lhtrorgh inv6ting surplus funds otr liquid mutual

filn& for 6hort ttrE basis.

u tss0

Decemb.r 12,2023

0.00
(0 00)

(

*
(a
-o
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Crsa Grande Vrllam Privr(t Limited
Noles to Financial Stltemcnts for the period ended March 31,2021

Ull anounts are tu Mi io s. nnle\s othe ntis e s ldte.1 I

Thc lablc bclow summariscs the impact of inocasc/dccr€asc of the N€t Asscl Value (NAV) on the profit for lhc year. The anal)sis is

based on thc a$urnption drat the NAV pricc would incr€as€ 57o and decreas€ bv 5% *ilh aI vdiablc constant

Increrse/
Ch.ngc in r.lc (dccrcit ) in

Drolit
March 31.2024 +5%

-5v.

Dec.mber 12,2023 +5oA

-5%

li. Cr€dit risk
Crcdit risk is the nsk of loss that rnay aris€ on outstanding financial insrumenls if a counlcrparty dcfaull on its obligations. ThE

Company's exposurc to crcdit risk arises majorly fmm tmdc rec€ivables/ unbillcd revenue and o(her financial assets.

O(her financial asscts likc secuity deposils. loans and bank deposiB arE rnostly wilh ernployees, govemment bodies and banks atd

h.ncc, thc Company does nol cxpccl any crcdit risk with rcspccl to thcsc financial asscts.

With raspcct to o-ndc reccivableJ unbillol rcvcnuc, thc Company has constitulcd teams to rcvicw thc rcccivablcs on pctiodic basis and

to rake necessary mitigations, wh.revcr rcquired. The Company creates allowaDce for all uns€cured rereivables bas€d on lifctim€

cxpccled cr.dit loss ('ECL ).

llt. Llquidlty st
'Ihc Company's principal sotrE6 of liquidity are c.sh rDd cash cquivaleds and the cash flow that is genemtcd from operatiofls. The

Company believcs thar lhc cash and cash cqui\rlcnE is srrmcient to m€ct ils cunent requirernctlE. Accordingly no liquidity risk is

pcrceivcd.

Thc break-up of crsh and cash equit-alctrts, dep6ils and invcsunents is as b€low.
N'lrrch 3l 2021

Casb and cash equivalents 10.l7

Thc tablc b€low summariscs fie rnaturity profile of dre Company's financial liabilitics al the rcpotting datc. Tlc amounts ar€ based on

conEactual undiscounted payments

Ilrluritr period Merch 31.2021

Finrncial lirbilities - curr€nt
Borrowings (curreno

Trad. palablcs

Olher fi nancial liabilir'es

Within a year

wirhin a ycar

Within a year

360.85

167.50

7.00

u ASS

*CHENT{AI



('$. GrrDd. Vrll.m Pritrrt Limftcd
lorA lo t_in.hci.l Sl.t(monrs for rh. D4iod cnd.d tt.rch.ll. 202:l

tllla nuttt al t ln.han Rtl?e( r,tl(\ othttutk sldtcn)

r7. R.l.rtd prrlt rrrns..ri0ns

Nrmt ofrh. R.l.r.d P.rry NrrurcotRelrlionshh
Cegrand Prcmcr Buildd Um(.d (fomdly knosn 6 Cresred
Premicr Bnildcr Pri!f, rc l-hircdl
cee Or.nde Z.$ Priv.rc Limtu.l
Cu (nadc Gac. Privlt Umircd
Ce Chndc C dcsCilyBuildc6P varc Linri&n
C& Gmrdc Mil.$d. Privat Limited
Ce Ordc Homer hvlte Limnc.t

C& GBrd. Civil E gin.crirg PivaE Umit d
CeSBnd Hqi2ons Privat Limitcd
Ce C6ndc Axa@) Priv.lc Umit.d
c&gred si.ylo& kivar. Limicd
Cas.gtud Virua PriY.t U6ncd
Cegtud M.gct Rury PntlG Umicd
Ce8tud Sman Yalu. Hones Priv.te Uhncd
C&gtud Bizp.A P.iEr. Limir.d
Cas.gtund Rc8.lc Prisl Umir.d
cal.! M.g Prilal. Lihircd
Caegtud MilLnia Priv.E UDit d
c@grud P.rch Buildcr Privarc Lifrircd
Cegr.rd Bacd Pri%t. Linir.d
ce8rud Ltus kiEt UmiEd
Flel Build.r Priv . Limit d
Csatud F cdhd6 P.iv3l. Umitld
Cdgnrd Alphin. Priul. Umir.d (Aom 221072022)

Cegrud arur. Priur. Limir.d
Cssnnd Adh.tic Priv.c LimiLd
Csgrud sba.7 P.isrc Limii.d
Erod. Buildq Privlt. UniLd
cdg d ziryo PriBtc LiEil! l
C.s.Bmd Ev.rl Priv.t Limit d
Cegland Eioti! Pri!.t Lirircd
C&glad Vive. P.iEt. Limit d
Ce8rud Hyd.Bi* Plivcc UniEd
(}trgrud Fr.sh P.ival. Umncd
Ce8r.!d C6r..rs Priv.r. Limir.d (f!oD I ru7-2021)
c&Br.nd cov@ Privarc Limii.d (ftm 0E-08-2023)

cegEld Utb.no Pnvd. Limit d (frm 10{8-2021)
Cegrud Avdn P.iv& LiDilcd (fim 3 I {E-2021)
calgnnd G.ll.nl.. R.tl Blar. LLC { l0-07-2023 )

C.e. Gntrd. Sh.ll.i Ih! .Um'Ed(v.cf Il-I1.202.1)
Ce Crln& RcJrors Privlle Umitd (w...t l3-12-2023)
Ddub Hm6 Prird. Umir.d
Cstlrd A"ch6 Priv.t tinlit d
Cr!8rud Viv&ny Privlt tihitld
cetrud BhE Hmi6 kiEt tjlnitld
c&srud M.grM Piv& Ljmird
Hqdwly AB lndu.p!* Privsr. Linit d (toln 04-05-2023)
CCD lrdurrirl P.rtr PriEt. Unir.d (froo 03-10-202.1)

H..dMy Prmid Lduip.t* Priv .Unit d (Am 0+12-2023)
vE!6 ftmid lldu.p.tt Privla Uhitld (toln 0a-12-2023)
Baut PrEmi.r bdugut Prihr. tjtnilcd (nom 01-12-2023)

C.5.gmd Sp{cht ll Priv.G Linit d

Up.try Build.. ftivaE Umit d
Inis whitbod Priv.r. Limit d (tDm 13.02-2024)
Crsr Cnndc Enldpriscr LI.P
Cs Gtud. Sbclrs LLP (Till I I-12-2023)
c:$ Cn d. R..hr5 LLP flil 13-12-2023)

Cs Gtudc V.lhh LP Gi[ | 3J 2-202])
DwninS D.vclopd. LLP
GlE G.l.d Cctrduity tlP
AEr Hopc Fdr&to Fntid.s und.r coEmoi co. rol

t A5n!

!.
CHENNAI*



c.s. Gr.rd. v.ll.h Priv.rt Limil.d
Nor6 to finrtr.i.l Strtem€ntsfor th. p.nod..d.d M(.h !1, !02:l
dllaDit t s dr.in l' lnt Rupe.s, unl.ss oth.tui\e ot.tl)

\.mcofrhcL(hrcdP,r(r l. r ur. of Rrhlion!hip
Blr2krieg T€chnologtr Privar. L'mned
ceghnd Bri8lr xids PnEtc Limitd
z. sr HMc s!'{.h LLI
lRlS Dcv.lopm.nl LLP
Arun F.m ily Trustccship LLP

C.esmd supm. Home LLP
Nobilitas Homc Sceh LLP
Bh. Sa Hm6 Scrch LLP
Cas@d tuor kivaG Limncd
CtmCp.ttr WetNinS P.rts P.iv.& Umiled(Till I E- I 2-2011)

Sol&. Grkd Commqniry LLP

S.! Vid Hom. S.mh LLP
AAX Ralty S.nic6 LLP
Gllldt Prmord LLP
Cs Gtud. Coimbatd. LLP
ProIEl Holdings LLP
q$grarl AM Mn Ac.dcty f(M&tim
Sp..io Pnnicr Clobal P.r* PriEG Ljmil.d (Till Odob.t 2021)

C.r.gBnd St rprlr Priv.rc Limit d

Ce Gn d. Prop.e PriEc Umitcd

Do.nyt'm.l.taio. D6igr & Solulios Priv.l€ Limitcd (fomdly
hos & Ce Incriq Sardio kivrc UBiLd wt.f 10{5-2024)
S.i Pt.llD R.ddy Chinbr.p.Xi

siv. s{r}s R.ddy N.tcll.

R1in.6h ,iin (TiU l44a-2024)

R.ghurdhe sumdn Xritlm.

Nths Abhish.k Jla

Ent'trcs undcr .onrmon .unlrol
Entn'cs undcr cmmon.onuol
Entitics undcr.onxlon.onkol
Eo icr uRl.r cm.ron conrol
End'cs urd$ common control
E tilics udq cohmon.duol
E litics u.dcr common enml
Entni.s und.t commoo .drrol
E iti.s md.r common .onrol
Enriri6 hdcr commo. cmEol
Entitics ud.r cohmon dllol
Enriti6 undd comnon coit ol

Enrit.s und.r cohmm knrol
E ili6 ad.r common contrcl
Entni$ uds comdon 6uol
Eltiti.s ud.r comhon.dtrcl
Endti6 undd cmmon cofuol
Erlit.6 udcr common cmrrol
Entiti6 udd c@Dq conrol
Etrtitics hdd mhnron contol
Ertitid udd c@Dd cdrol

Etrdd6 uds lmn@ conml
K.ymi scmdtpcenn.l
K.y managmal Fsof,ncl
Xly d@8cmnt p.Mnncl orpsrcnt

KGy mmaScmml p.Mnncl ofprrcol

Kcy hm4Emcnr pcNnnd of p.rctrt

Kcy mdt8dcnt peBonncl of paml

rcy manlgcm.nt n lgo.l of p.r.nt

Kly msEg.mdt 0.Mn.l of paEbl

Not : R.ht d pany rcLti63hips lrc a idmtifi.d by thc mrnlgcmcnt

ll. Tr.rrcdrr tftl .1. t.bi.d P.tdd

PrntthB M.Et 31.20I

C... God. Civil Ea8r.6ing Priht LimiLd
Ce Gtud. Gn c Pri\tl. Umtcd
C$! C d. MiLsroi. Priv.L Limn.d
c.i.sE!d HmzG Priv.c LitniEd
Cesn 

'd 
Masick Ruli PriEr. Lhn.d

Ce Csdc Hom.r kivale Limiled

C.sqrznd Millcni. Priut Umit d

.) R.llltort D."r f,rp.rtd Rccd.ry
Cu8rud Miucnia Privlt Litnitcd

0.28
0.t?
0.0 r

0_01

0.01

0.52
0.0r

0.01

d) lr.r X..ttv.d
C&8r.nd Prani.r Buildd UmiLd (fo.D. y rnoff .! Clsgtud
Pln i6 B{ildd Prirtt! tilnn d)
cu GEDd. Civil EndMrint PriEt l-inilld
C.!r G.rdG Cte Pirt. Umit d

49.62

0.14

0_3t

c.!r Gr.rdc coimbaGc Ll,
CGD Srhei Piint LiBit d
Gr... Gl.d Comnuity UD

, F.dnay MtDr.rrl rrvt6
C... Gn d. ProDqE Pnvlt. Umit d

l.5l
0.18
0.08

t.0l

CHENNAI

s

*



Crtr Grrtrd. Vrll.m Privrt. Limit.d
Not.s to Finrncirl Strtcm.trts for th. pcriod cndcd Merch 31,2024
(,l amounts arc in lndion Rupees, unless othetwise

lIar.h 3l 2t21
g) M.irtrtr.trcc ltrcomc

Casagmnd Prehier Builder Limited (formerly known as Cssagrsnd
Premier Builder Private Limited)

h) Mdtrtrr.trc. Ircomc
Ca$grand Slaylogf Private Limited

i) I!!uc ofrbrrc c.pit l
Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (formerly known as Casagmnd
Premier Builder Private Limited)
Dorothy Thomas

iii. B.hncc! outst.nditrg rt th. .nd oftha y.rr
a) Shorl t rm borrowing!

Cas6grand Premier Builder Limited (formerly known as Casagmnd
Premier Builder Privale Limited)
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited
Cass Interior Studio Privale Limited
Casagrand Magic Ru8 Private Limited
Casagrand Horizons Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Casa GIa de Civil Engine€ring Private Linited
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

b) Irt.r.stPryrbl.
Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Casa Crande Grac€ Private Limited

Casa GBnde Smart value Homes Privale Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (formerly known 6s Casagrand

Premier Builder Pnvate Limited)

Da\rning Developen LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Cas6 Gmnde Homes Private Limited

C6ss Gmnde Milestone Privale Limited
Casagrand Horizons Pflvate Llmited
Casagrand MaSick Rufy Privale Limited
Casa8rand Millenla Private Limited

c) Sh.r. C.pit.l
Casa8rand Premier Builder Limited (formerly known as Casagrand

hemier Builder Privale Limiled)

Dorothy Thomas

d) Sho -tarm lorni rnd rdvrBces
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

Dorothy Thomas

.) Trrd. Pryrbl.
Casa Grande Propcare Privale Limit€d

Casa lnterior Studio Private Limiled

0 Tr.dc R.c.ivrblc
Casagrand Shylogy Priyate Limited

g) Irt.r.st R.c.iv.bl.
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Crande Homes Private Limited

Casa Gmnde Realtors Privale Lirnited

Casa Grande Sheher Private Limited

CasaSrand Millenia Private Limited

Casagrand Staylogy Private Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

2t, Commitm.nts rnd cotrtitrgctrci.s
(r) Commitm.nts

Estimated amounts ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
(i) Capital expenditure commitmentsr (31 March 2024 - Nil)

(b) Cotrting.trl lirbility
(i) Claims aSainst the entity nol acknowledged as debts

Partlculars

0.09

0.01

351.32

010

001

144

0. t0
0.10
2.47
6.62

0.14

0.E5

0.24

0.01

0.16
0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

170

r63
004

21.19

0.t3
0.10

0.37

0.02

0.t I
0.54

0.01

0.03

0.04

0.01

001

Ilrrch 3l 2021

6.52

l.t9
7.7r

CHEN'{AI

GST

Other natters

035

0.09

0.01



Cssa Crrnde Vtllam Privrte Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Pcriod onded March 3l' 2024

are in Millions. unless

29. Segment rePorting

The C,roup is into the business ofreal estate d€velopment helce segmont reponing as per lnd AS lot is not applicable

30. Ralio anallsis and its elcments

As at March
31,202{DcnominatorNumcratolRatio

0.02

l.9l

-0.42

0.17

0.02

NA

0.95

158.96

Current Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Average Shareholder's

Equity

Debt scn'ice = F'inance

cost (including interest

cousidcrcd as oPeration

cost) + Lease Payments
+ Principal repayments

Average lnventory

Avcrage Trade

Reccivable

Avcrage Trade

Payables

working capital =

Current assets -
Currcnt liabilitics

Net sales = Total sales

sales retum

Capital Employed =
Tangible Net Worth +

Total Debt + Defened

Tax Li.bilitY

lnvesmleut

Current Assets

Total Debt

Eamings for debt

sewice = Net Profit

after taxes + Finance

cost (including inlerest

considered as

operatioo oost) + non

cash oPerating

expenses

Net Protits aller taxes

Preference Dividend

Cost ofgoods sold

Net credit sales =

Gross credit sales _

sales rcturn

Net credit Purchases =

Cnoss credit Purchases
purchasg retum

Net sales = l'otal sales

sales retum

Eamings before

interest and taxes

lnteresl (Finance

Net Profit

Incomc

Current ratio

Debt- Equity Ratio

Debt Service

Covemge ratio

Retum on Equity

ratio

Inventory Tumover
ralio

Tmde Receivable

Tumover Ratio

Trade Payablc

Tumover Ratio

Net Capital

Tumover Ratio

Net Profil ratio

Retum on CaPital

Employed

Retum on

lnvestment

CHENNAI

u
'Ratio analysis not apPlicablc as lhis is the first year of lllcorpolation'
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Crs. Crandc vallan Privcle Limited

Notcs (o Finrncirl Str(ements for lhc period cnded [trrch.3l,2024
Atl anrcu ts are in Milions, unless othen)ise sloted)

31. Othcr strlutory informrlion

(i) Thc Company do not havc any Bcnami propcrty, whcrc any proccedinS has bc€n initiated or pcnding against Thc Ciroup for holdinS any

Benami property.

(ii) The Companydo not have any transaclions wilh companics struck off
(iii) Thc compatry do Dot havc any charges or sarisfaction wbich is yet to be rcgisrcrcd with Roc bqond lic statutory penod,

(iv) Thc Company have not radcd or invesled in Cr)?io currcncy or Virhral Curency during fie financial ,€r'
(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invesred funds to any other peGon(s) or entiMies) , including foreiSn entities

(lntcrmcdiaries) $.ith thc undcrstanding thal th€ Intcrmcdiary shall:

(a) dncctly or indncclly lend or inves! in othcr pcrsons or cnrities idmtificd il| any manncr whalso€vcr by or on behalf oI The Group

(Ultimat€ Beneficiaries) or

(b) prolide any guarantcc, sccurity or the like to or or bchalfof thc Ultimatc Bcncficiancs

(vi) Thc company bave nor reccived any fund from any p€rson(s) or cntiq(ies) , including foreiSn enlities (Fuding Party) wilh lhe

understanding (whether tccord.d in writjng or othcrwisc) lhat The Grcup shall:

(a) dircctly or indirEcrly lcnd or invest in oth€{ pcrsons or cntities idef,tificd in any manner whatsoevcr by or oo b€}|alf of lhc Funding

Psny (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or

(b) provide any guaranree, security or the like on behalf oflhe Ultimate Bcneficiari€s,

(vii) Thc Company havc not any such transaction which is not rcrorded in lhe bookr ofaccounts that has bccn surrendercd or discloscd as

incomc dunnjtc ycar ln thc lrr asscssments under thc lncomc Tax Act, 196l (such as, search or su ey or any olher relevanl provisions

of thc lncomc Tax Act, l96l

32. Exp.nditrrc ir fot.igr curancy
Thc company has not madc any cxpalditure in foreign curr.ocy

33. Audll Tr.il

The company mainrains prop.r books of accounr as rcquircd by rhc law. Thc books of acco{rnt are slso elcctronicslly maintained by thc

company. The backup is maintaincd in scrvers located in India. T1le accounting sottwarc h3s the featurc of rcco{ding audit Fail ofcach and

cvcD/ tmnsaclion.

3,1. Code on Soci.l Sccurlty

ThcCodconsocialSccudty,2020(.Code,)relatinSlocmplo}$bencfitsdurin8cmploymentandpost.€mploymentbcnefitsreccived
prcsidcntial assent in sep(cmbcr 2020. The code has bccn pubtished in lhc Gazctte of India. Howeva., lhc date on which lhe code will

colnc into cffcct has not barn notjli.d ahd thc final nrlcs4nt rprchtion hav. nol yct bccn issued. Thc Company will ass6s lhc irnpact of lhc

Code whcn it cornls into cffcct aod will rccGd any r.latcd impsct in thc Pcriod &c Codc becomes eff€ctive'

For CNGSN & Associ.tcs LLP
Chanered Accountalts

Firm Registration Numbo : 049155

C, N. GrnS.dr n

Parmcr
Mcrnbgship Numbcr : I 1 205

Plscc : Chcnnai

Datrc :13.01.2024

For rnd on beh.lf ofthe Bo.rd ofDirectors of
C.sr Grrnde VrUim Privsl€ Limit.d LAup
CIN : U68 165920
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3
S.l Prrt.p Reddy

Dircctor
DIN: 10074244 DIN 02l8s6l

Placc : Chcnnai

Date:13.07.2024

Plac. : Chennai

Datc : 13.07.2024
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